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ThaiBev, incorporated as a public company limited in October 2003       

by integrating a multitude of companies, is a historic development in 

Thailand’s alcoholic beverage industry. By bringing together these 

companies, 63 in all as of December 31, 2005, as one vertically 

integrated, highly diversified entity, Thai Beverage Public Company 

Limited has emerged as one of the largest corporations in the   

alcoholic beverage industry of Southeast Asia… 

Complementary strengths and resources will combine seamlessly while  

maintaining our belief and our distinct appeal and advantages to 

achieve our goals. We will maximize the potential of our people, our 

facilities, our capabilities and our infrastructure to be among the most 

competitive in the world. We believe we have not just expertise and 

enduring strength but the inventive spirit to succeed. Opportunities for 

growth are boundless. We will not be bound by borders in our belief or 

our inventiveness, nor will we waver in our commitment to the pursuit 

of progress. 
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Financial Highlights
Current assets 32,399 41,548 43,552
Total assets 81,211 89,121 91,506
Current liabilities 49,651 54,523 66,457
Total liabilities 49,845 55,759 66,570
Shareholders' equity 31,366 33,363 24,936
Total revenues* 92,378 90,620 93,185
EBITDA* 21,000 20,195 19,293
EBIT   16,718 15,901 15,182
Net profit before the portion not attributable to the Company 10,409 9,669 9,060 
Net profit 10,409 10,417 6,928
Earnings per share (Baht) 0.47 0.47 0.31
Cashflow from operating activities       
 before changes in operating assets and liabilities 21,148 20,340 18,968
Cashflow from operations 23,675 19,344 22,022
Cashflow from investing (9,806) (8,096) (27,079)
Cashflow from financing (11,499) (14,323) (7,694)
Cash at the end of the year 3,251 886 3,960
Key Financial Ratios      
ROA (%)* 12.8% 11.7% 7.6%
ROE (%)* 33.2% 31.2% 27.8%
Sales turnover (times) 1.14x 1.02x 1.02x
Account receivables turnover (days) 1.6 3.4 4.3
EBITDA margin (%)* 22.7% 22.3% 20.7%
EBIT margin (%)* 18.1% 17.5% 16.3%
Net profit margin - before the portion not attributable to the Company (%)* 11.3%  10.7% 9.7%
Net profit margin (%)*    11.3% 11.5% 7.4%
Debt/Equity (times) 1.29x 1.41x 2.28x

2005
Baht Million

2004
Baht Million

2003
Baht Million

*Graphs showed in the next page
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Financial Highlights 

Beer  915.4 977.5 1,076.4
 Chang 910.4 949.1 1,076.4
 Archa 5.0 28.3 0.0
 Water 43.2 47.2 50.0
 Soda 20.0 22.0 19.7
Spirits  489.9 492.8 464.4
 White Spirits 375.5 385.7 378.7
 Brown Spirits 114.4 107.1 85.7
 Sang Som 78.1 69.4 50.3
 Mekhong 13.5 19.9 18.6
 Mungkorn Thong 16.9 12.9 15.4
 Other Brown Spirits 5.9 4.9 1.5
Export sales of beer and spirits 6.9 6.8 5.6
 Beer 5.9 6.0 4.7
 Spirits 1.0 0.8 0.8
Total Beer 921.3 983.5 1,081.1
Total Spirits 490.9 493.6 465.3
Industrial Alcohol 53.0 61.7 55.9
 Alcohol 95 32.2 57.6 55.9
 Ethanol 20.8 4.2 0.0
Production   
 Beer 914.7 988.3 1,081.3
 Spirits 448.9 482.2 416.2
Capacity

 Beer 1,090.0 1,090.0 1,090.0
 Spirits 790.0 790.0 790.0
Utilization

 Beer 83.9% 90.7% 99.2%
 Spirits 56.8% 61.0% 52.7%

2005 2004 2003

*Sales volume includes free goods which are part of sales promotion

Sales volume* (million liters)
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 ThaiBev, incorporated as a public company limited in October 

2003 by integrating a multitude of companies, is a historic 

development in Thailand's alcoholic beverage industry. By 

bringing together these companies, 63 in all as of December 31, 

2005, as one vertically integrated, highly diversified entity, Thai 

Beverage Public Company Limited has emerged as one of the 

largest corporations in the alcoholic beverage industry of 

Southeast Asia. 

  

 The creation of ThaiBev is the result of visionary savvy, inspired 

by our strive for progress. 'Progress Beyond the Horizon', the 

company's slogan, underscores our mission to improve our 

competitive position. Importantly, it also defines our beliefs and 

ideals in undertaking business. We believe in creating growth 

and value that translate into long term benefits not only for our 

shareholders but also for the advancement of society and the 

nation as a whole. 

 ThaiBev is the leading producer of beer and spirits in Thailand 

and Southeast Asia. The stellar performance of our beer and 

spirits speaks volumes.  For several years we have had a strong 

portfolio of leading spirits brands. We also lead in Thailand's 

beer market. Despite our recent entry into the market, we have 

maintained the largest share of the Thai beer market for the 

past seven years. Globally, our Chang beer is now sold in 19 

markets -- that's no small achievement for a 10-year-old brand. 

We believe we have vast, unparalleled resources and strengths 

to grow and be among the top-tier companies in the world. 

Integration of our companies has provided an even stronger 

portfolio of products as well as a strong financial profile for 

ThaiBev to move forward. We will leverage on our leadership to 

improve our competitive position in international markets 

which are becoming increasingly liberalized. 

 Staying competitive in the alcoholic beverage business is an 

enormous challenge. Reinvesting in our business is a key 

element in sustaining our success. Financial stability is our 

platform for creating shareholders' value, and we are building 

value in a number of ways. 

 

 We are investing in our production facilities. We are currently 

undertaking significant expansion in our brewing capacity to 

meet anticipated demand growth for our beer brands, both in 

Thailand and overseas. Our breweries aim to produce only the 

highest quality of beer by international standards and our 

facilities are sufficiently flexible to support a variety of brands 

with minimal additional investment. Our 16 distilleries have 

been continuously upgraded over the years, and are run by an 

experienced management team with proven track record of 

production know-how. 

Message from the Chairman
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We are investing in product quality. Annually, we set aside a 

sizable sum of money for research and development. R&D is 

deployed to meet the highest standards not only for all aspects 

of quality controlled production at our breweries and distilleries 

but also for procurement of all raw ingredients as well as    

operation and maintenance of our production facilities. 

 In both our beer and spirits business we are investing heavily to 

introduce new products. We recently introduced Archa, a new 

light beer brand, and we are  launching Chang Light, a new brew 

of Chang with lighter alcohol content in the first quarter of this 

year. A new white spirit brand, Niyomthai, is also to be launched 

in the first quarter. In the last quarter of 2005, we launched 

Blue, a new premium admix brand which is the first of its kind 

to be produced locally. We are confident in our ability to bring 

new products to satisfy market demands.  

 We are investing in new markets. We have set up a subsidiary in 

Hong Kong, and more recently in Singapore. Additional 

subsidiaries will be established soon in  Malaysia and Cambodia 

to expand exports of our products and to penetrate new 

markets in Southeast Asia. Through our appointed dealership in 

the UK, we are working conscientiously to expand exports of our 

products to the European markets. 

 

 To complement our alcohol beverage business, we acquired an 

industrial alcohol production facility in August 2002. It has 

already yielded significant gains. Ethanol produced at this 

facility has enabled us to contribute to energy conservation 

needs of Thailand. We will also be favorably positioned to 

increase the export of ethanol and several other industrial 

alcohol products to global markets.

 

 We are building shareholders' value, too, through probably the 

most prudent and profitable means of managing wastes from 

the production of beverages at our breweries and distilleries. 

By-products, such as animal feeds, organic fertilizers, bricks and 

bio-fuels, generated from wastes have resulted in tremendous 

savings in costs, in addition to revenue realized from both 

domestic and international sales. 

 Investing in our people is also a key focus in creating value. On 

the production side, we have chosen top technicians as well as 

top-class brewers and blenders for producing our beers and 

spirits.  On the marketing side, we have experienced professionals 

with proven track record. They have not only contributed to 

building success for our brands but are also well qualified to 

lead and create new growth opportunities. 

 Thanks to the entrepreneurial spirit and professionalism of our 

managers, plus the substantial investment channeled into 

advertising and promotions, and other marketing activities, our 

beer and spirits brands have established distinct identities      

that appeal strongly to the hearts and minds of consumers. 

Sponsorship of high profile sports team such as Everton Football 

Club has increased brand visibility for Chang in Thailand and 

abroad. We will continue to secure strategic marketing                

investments for Chang and other brands in our portfolio. 

We are building shareholders' value, too, through probably

the most prudent and profitable means of managing wastes 

from the production of beverages at our breweries and distilleries    



We aim to maximize the potential of our people,

our facilities, our capabilities and our infrastructure

to be among the most competitive in the world  

Message from       the Chairman
Message from       the Chairman

9Annual Report 2005

The strong identity of our brands is also the result of the priority 

ThaiBev places on social responsibility. In so many ways, we lend 

our hands and our hearts to non-profit organizations, hospitals, 

schools or citizens in need. Money from profits we generate are 

put back not just into charitable deeds but into the promotion 

and preservation of arts and culture, among other values, that 

serves the best interest of societal needs. As an example,            

donation of blankets bearing the Chang logo has become our 

signature charity event that is most welcomed by rural          

communities throughout Thailand. 

  

 We are on the verge of listing ThaiBev and declaring an initial 

offering of our shares to the public, which will further exemplify 

ThaiBev's corporate image as one of the most dominant players 

in Southeast Asia's alcoholic beverage industry, as well                   

as increase the recognition of our brands internationally.     

Moreover, it would enhance our competitive strength and ably 

equipped us to meet challenges of the global free-trade            

marketplace. 

 Complementary strengths and resources will combine seamlessly 

while maintaining our belief and our distinct appeal and    

advantages to achieve our goals. We aim to maximize the 

potential of our people, our facilities, our capabilities and our 

infrastructure to be among the most competitive in the world. 

We believe we have not just expertise and enduring strength 

but the inventive spirit to succeed. Opportunities for growth are 

boundless. We will not be bound by borders in our belief or our

inventiveness, nor will we waver in our commitment to the 

pursuit of progress. 

 Thaibev is fully aware of the opportunities that await it -- and 

that of its  responsibilities to our employees, our customers, our 

shareholders and the society at large. 

 In 2005, total consolidated revenues of the company were Baht* 

92,378 million, with Baht 16,718 million in earnings before tax 

and a net profit of Baht 10,409 million. ThaiBev will continue to 

perform well in 2006, as Thailand's economic fundamentals to 

support strong growth remain firm despite the risks in rising oil 

prices as well as exchange and interest rates. 

 We have performed solidly each year, and this success is owed 

to all our shareholders, our business partners, our customers and 

our employees. We are immensely thankful for your support. 

Your continuing contribution is invaluable to our commitment 

to securing a strong future for ThaiBev.

 

Charoen Sirivadhanabhakdi

Chairman

*1 US Dollar is equivalent to approximately 40 Baht.
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The past two years have been challenging, economically and 

industry-wise. In 2004, Thailand's alcoholic beverage industry 

came under pressure from restrictions on advertising legislated 

in late 2003. Besides the ban on direct and hard sell of the   

advertising message, TV airtime for alcoholic drinks was limited 

to just eight hours, from10.00pm to 05.00am, a day. Since early 

2005, sales of alcoholic drinks at modern retail outlets have 

been restricted to specific hours of the day.  Throughout 2004, 

fuel costs skyrocketed as a result of rising global oil prices, and 

high energy costs have been sustained throughout 2005. On 

September 7, 2005, the Excise Department increased excise  

taxes on all brown spirits, except those classified by the Excise              

Department as compounded spirits, or Sura Pasom, such as our 

Mungkorn Thong brand. The excise tax on brown spirits           

calculated as a Baht per liter of pure alcohol basis increased 

from Baht* 240 to Baht 400. With this backdrop, the pressure 

has been on the industry to perform. 

 For the year ended December 31, 2005, ThaiBev reported Baht 

92,378 million in total revenues and net profits of Baht 10,409 

million. It also reported Baht 81,211 million in total assets, Baht 

49.845 million in liabilities and Baht 31,366 million in           

shareholders' equity. The company held shares, both wholly and 

partially, in 63 subsidiaries which are involved in the production, 

distribution and marketing of alcoholic and non-alcoholic 

drinks, industrial alcohol, by-products and other related 

businesses.

 The Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting held on July 8, 2005 

gave approval for the company to increase its capital from Baht 

22,000 million to Baht 29,000 million.

Our key results from operations in 2005 are reported as follows:  

Sales Volume

Beer and Water

In the domestic market, sales volume of Chang and Archa beer 

amounted to 915 million liters, and 43 million liters of Chang 

drinking water and 20 million liters of Chang soda water were 

sold. Export volume of Chang beer totaled 6 million liters.

Spirits

 Domestically, the Group reported a total of 490 million liters of 

spirits sales volume, 376 million liters of which are white spirits 

and 114 million liters of which are brown spirits and others. 

Export sales of spirits in 2005 totaled 1 million liters. 

Industrial Alcohol

Sales volume of alcohol 95 degrees and ethanol were 32 million 

liters and 21 million liters, respectively.

 In international markets, the performance of our beers and 

spirits has been satisfactory. Future growth for the near term is 

likely to come mostly from markets in Asia. Markets in the Asian 

region now account for approximately 80% of our export sales, 

which are overseen by our own subsidiaries in Hong Kong and 

Singapore.

10 Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited *1 US Dollar is equivalent to approximately 40 Baht.
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Business Expansion

As a significant part of the company's growth strategy, we 

continuously invest in our production facilities to ensure the 

highest quality products for our end consumers and to increase 

capacity to meet future market demands. 

Capital Expenditure and Investments

 Beer Thai (1991) Plc. is in the process of increasing brewing 

capacity of its Kamphaengphet brewery from 460 million liters 

to 900 million liters per annum. The expansion, with a total 

construction cost of approximately Baht 7,200 million, is   

scheduled for completion in the first quarter of 2007. 

 Beer Thip Brewery (1991) Co., Ltd. also commenced construction 

and installation of a water filtration system at the Bang Ban 

brewery with a total construction cost of Baht 838 million to 

utilize river water in the production process. 

On the distillery front, Sang Som Distillery commenced a Baht 

818 million installation of three high-speed packing lines to 

increase capacity and reduce packaging costs.  Baht 850 million 

has also been set aside for a project to be implemented at       

five distilleries for the elimination of waste water from the    

fermentation of molasses to produce bio-gas as by-product. 

The bio-gas can be used as a fuel source (substituting for fuel 

oil) to reduce our energy costs. 

 Thai Alcohol Plc. completed a Baht 897 million capacity expansion 

of its Bang Lane production facility. Total production capacity of 

pure alcohol 95 degrees has now increased to 200,000 liters per 

day. The company also plans to invest an additional Baht 200 

million to upgrade the Thai Alcohol facility to use cassava as an 

alternative raw material to molasses for the production of 

ethanol. 

We commenced construction of ThaiBev Tower, a new head 

office of Thai Beverage Public Company Limited which               

we expect to complete by the end of 2007 at a cost of               

approximately Baht 2,382 million. 

 Additionally in October 2005, ThaiBev acquired all outstanding 

shares of Cosmos Brewery Co., Ltd., Beer Chang Co., Ltd., Beer 

Archa Co., Ltd., and T.C.C. Cosmo Co., Ltd., which further 

completes the integration of beverage businesses in Thailand 

under one consolidated entity.

Export Expansion

 International Beverage Holdings Ltd. (InterBev) has been   

established as a holding company in Hong Kong to oversee 

international expansion and investments overseas for the 

ThaiBev group. With privileges accorded under AFTA 

(ASEAN Free Trade Agreement) and its strong knowledge of 

regional markets, a wholly-owned subsidiary of InterBev, 

Interbev (Singapore) Ltd., was also established as a trading and 

investment company to handle expansion of export of beer and 

spirits to markets overseas, with emphasis placed on developing 

growth in markets of ASEAN.
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Human Resource Development and Management

 In meeting future growth of the company with regard to the 

development and management of human resources, systems to 

evaluate as well as improve work process and performance   

have been introduced. These include the development of 

professionalism, rotation of key positions, plans in place to 

provide successors for key employees, review of earnings and 

evaluation of performance. Communication  systems within the 

group has also been improved to enhance accuracy and 

efficiency in production as well as administrative work.

 Kan Kwan distillery in Khon Kaen was used as a role model to    

be able to introduce successful programs in human resource 

development and work process improvement to all other   

distilleries. Maximum Productivity Consultant Co., Ltd., a 

consulting company, was hired specifically to undertake this 

task.

 To enhance capability of the production workforce, key managers 

have been assigned to impart knowledge and experience gained 

from their extensive training and orientation at numerous 

production facilities as well as educational institutes overseas. 

To further improve efficiency of overall operations, implementation 

of the SAP system is on going. This integrated system of 

software applications provides a common framework for 

accounting, production planning, inventory management, 

procurement, sale and distribution, plant maintenance, human 

resources and cost management activities for our breweries. 

Requiring an initial investment of Baht 250 million, the       

implementation of the SAP applications for each part of our 

business is expected to be complete by 2008.  

  

Financial Management 

 

 ThaiBev has carefully considered plans to enable its common 

stocks to be listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore. This 

would strengthen not only our financial position but also our 

corporate image as one of the most dominant players in the 

Southeast Asian alcoholic beverage industry, as well as increase 

the recognition of our brands internationally.

12 Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited
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As a symbol of our success in building a strong corporate profile 

for Thai Beverage Public Company Limited, the company, as well 

as its subsidiary Sang Som Co., Ltd., received A+ ratings by Thai 

Rating Information Services Co., Ltd. (TRIS), a reputable rating 

agency in Thailand. 

In February 2006, we successfully completed a domestic 

offering of short-term senior guaranteed debentures worth 

Baht 10,000 million to refinance our short-term borrowings. The 

offering was most favorably received by the market. The    

debentures also received T1 and A+ ratings by TRIS.

Key Goals for 2006 

 The listing of Thai Beverage Public Company Limited on the 

Stock Exchange of Singapore will be a major task for the year to 

mobilize capital and improve our competitive position, both 

locally and internationally. 

 In compliance with regulations stipulated by the Thai  

Government's Ministry of Industry, we intend to further improve 

on technological capability and resources employed in the 

treatment of waste water at our production facilities.

 Implementation of the SAP system at our distilleries will also be 

a major undertaking to allow for greater efficiency in boosting 

productivity and tailoring production to the needs of market 

demands.  

Overall, we are intent on improving the performance of each of 

our subsidiaries in order to build ThaiBev as one of Thailand's 

foremost corporations which is noted for its pursuit of financial 

stability and quality management.  

13Annual Report 2005
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Conglomerate of
ThaiBev Companies

• Thai Alcohol Plc. • Beer Thai (1991) Plc.

• Beer Thip Brewery
   (1991) Co., Ltd.

• Cosmos Brewery
   (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

• Sangsom Co., Ltd.

• Fuengfuanant Co., Ltd.

• Mongkolsamai Co., Ltd.

• Thanapakdi Co., Ltd.

• Kanchanasingkorn 
   Co., Ltd.

• Sura Bangyikhan Co., Ltd.

• Athimart Co., Ltd.

• S.S. Karnsura Co., Ltd.

• Kankwan Co., Ltd.

• Theparunothai Co., Ltd.

• Red Bull Distillery (1988) 
   Co., Ltd.

• United Winery &
   Distillery Co., Ltd.

• Simathurakij Co., Ltd.

• Nateechai Co., Ltd.

• Luckchai Liquor Trading 
   Co., Ltd.

• Pomkit Co., Ltd.

• Pomklang Co., Ltd.

• Pomcharoen Co., Ltd.

• Pomchok Co., Ltd.

• Pomthip Co., Ltd.

• Pomburapa Co., Ltd.

• Numyuk Co., Ltd.

• Numthurakij Co., Ltd.

• Nummuang Co., Ltd.

• Numnakorn Co., Ltd.

• Numpalang Co., Ltd.

• Num Kijjakarn Co., Ltd.

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited
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• Vidhayathan Co., Ltd.

• Muengkit Co., Ltd.

• T.C.C. Cosmos
   Corporation Co., Ltd.

• Pan Alcohol Co., Ltd.

• Banglen Agriculture
   Co., Ltd.

• Archa Beer Co., Ltd.

• Beer Chang Co., Ltd.

• Sintekpanich Co., Ltd.

• Suraphiset Thipharat
   Co., Ltd.

• Suraphiset Sahasan
   Co., Ltd.

• Suraphiset Samphan
   Co., Ltd.

• Suraphiset
   Pattaralanna Co., Ltd.

• Thai Thum
   Distillery Co., Ltd.

• Thipchalothorn Co., Ltd.

• Krittayabun Co., Ltd.

• Surathip Co., Ltd.

• Sunthronpirom Co., Ltd.

• Numpalang Co., Ltd.

• Thai Beverage 
   Marketing Co., Ltd.

• Sahatipkarnkonsong 
   Co., Ltd.

• Dhospaak Co., Ltd.

• Pan International
   (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

• Bionic Human Co., Ltd.

• Maharajkarnkaset Co., Ltd.

• Thai Molasses Co., Ltd.

• Additive Food Co., Ltd.

• Charun Business 52 
   Co., Ltd.

• Thai Cooperage Co., Ltd.

• Dhanasindhi Co., Ltd.

• Bang-na Logistics 
   Co., Ltd.

• International
   Beverage Holdings
   Limited

• Interbev Limited
   (Singapore)
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Board of 
  Directors



Board of 
  Directors

17

Board of Directors
1. Mr. Charoen Sirivadhanabhakdi
 Chairman

2. Khunying Wanna Sirivadhanabhakdi
 Vice Chairman

3. Mr. Narong Srisa-an
 Vice Chairman

4. Mr. Komen Tantiwiwatthanaphan
 Vice Chairman

5. Mr. Paisal Chevasiri
 Vice Chairman

6. Mr. Staporn Kavitanon
 Independent Director and
 Chairman of Audit Committee

7. Prof. Kanung Luchai
 Independent Director and
 Member of Audit Committee

8. Mr. Manu Leopairote
 Director

9. Mrs. Nongluck Phataraprasit
 Director

10. Mr. Vanich Chaiyawan
 Director

11. Mr. Sakthip Karairiksh
 Independent Director

12. Mr. Vivat Tejapaibul
 Director

13. Mr. Frederick Kwun Shing lp
 Director

14. Ms. Atinant Sirivadhanabhakdi
 Director

15. Mr. Puchchong Chandhanakij
 Director

16. Mr. Samut Hatthasing
 Director

17. Ms. Kanoknart Rangsithienchai
 Director

18. Mr. Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi
 Director

19. Mr. Sithichai Chaikriangkrai
 Director

20. Mr. Pisanu Vichiensanth
 Director

21. Mr. Ueychai Tantha-obhas
 Director

22. Ms. Thapanee Sirivadhanabhakdi
 Director

23. Mr. Chukiet Tangpongprush
 Director and Secretary to the Board
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Mr. Charoen 
Sirivadhanabhakdi

Chairman

Khunying Wanna
Sirivadhanabhakdi
First Vice Chairman

Mr. Paisal Chevasiri
Fourth Vice Chairman

Mr. Samut Hatthasing
President

Mr. Thapana 
Sirivadhanabhakdi

Executive Vice President

Ms. Thapanee
Sirivadhanabhakdi
Senior Vice President

Mr. Sithichai
Chaikriangkrai

Senior Vice President

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited
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Board of Executive 
Directors

Mr. Narong Srisa-an
Second Vice Chairman

Mr. Komen
Tantiwiwatthanaphan

Third Vice Chairman

Mr. Puchchong
Chandhanakij

Fifth Vice Chairman

Ms. Kanoknart
Rangsithienchai

Executive Vice President

 Mr. Pisanu Vichiensanth
Senior Vice President

Mr. Chukiet 
Tangpongprush

Senior Vice President
and Secretary

Mr. Ueychai
Tantha-obhas

Senior Vice President
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Key Brand of ThaiBev

Chang Chang Draught Chang Light Archa

Non-Alcoholic Drink

Beer

Chang Soda WaterChang Drinking Water

20 Thai Beverage Public Company Limited
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Key Brand of ThaiBev

Sang Som Sang Som
Superior

Sang Som
Premium

Sang Som
Similan

Mekhong Mekhong
Superior

Spirits

Mungkorn Thong Hong Thong

Shinobu

Niyomthai
40 Degrees

Niyomthai
35 Degrees

Niyomthai
30 Degrees

Ruang Khao
28 Degrees

Ruang Khao
30 Degrees

Ruang Khao
35 Degrees

Ruang Khao
40 Degrees

Sua DumChiang-ChunV.O. WhiskeyBlueCrown 99
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Chang -- Thailand’s best-selling beer

sold in 19 markets, regionally and globally
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The brewing of beer at ThaiBev is undertaken by our three 

breweries : Beer Thai (1991) Plc., Beer Thip   Brewery 

(1991) Co., Ltd. and Cosmos Brewery (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

 Chang beer has been the key driver behind ThaiBev's leadership 

in Thailand's beer market. Chang, our signature beer, was 

launched in 1995, and by 1999 it had captured over 50% market 

share of Thailand's total beer sales, by volume.  

Chang, a full-bodied lager with 6.4% alcohol content, has 

performed remarkably over the years. With a commanding share 

of over 70% in the mainstream beer segment, Chang continues 

to lead with a market share of approximately 60% share of the 

total beer volume sold in the Thai market in 2004(1). 

 

 Success was given a tremendous boost to the best selling Thai 

beer with a Gold Medal it won at the 1998 Australian International 

Beer Awards. Growth opportunity increased for expansion of its 

export to international markets. Chang is currently sold in 19 

countries in Asia Pacific and Europe, and is positioned as a 

premium segment beer in most markets.

 ThaiBev is also working closely with its international distributors 

to expand in the European markets. Sales in the United 

Kingdom, which is among our top five export markets, grew by 

more than 15.1% in 2005, compared to 2004. 

 With ThaiBev's resources and capability to set new growth 

standards, Chang has played a leading role in expanding the 

beer drinking base in Thailand. The Thai beer market grew by 

approximately 10% per annum on average from 1999 to 2004. 

Till now, ThaiBev continues to stimulate the domestic beer 

market. In July 2004, it introduced Archa beer. Packaged and 

positioned at a slight premium to Chang, Archa is targeted to 

social drinkers who prefer a low alcohol beer. 

Consolidating Leading Edge

Beer

(1) Source; Canadean, “The Beer Service, Annual Report – 2005 Cycle, Thailand”
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*1 US Dollar is equivalent to approximately 40 Baht.

Kamphaengphet facility
Soon to be Southeast Asia’s largest brewery
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To boost growth in the low alcohol beer segment, we launched 

a new light beer, Chang Light, as well as Chang Draught (in 

bottle and can), in the first quarter of 2006. This is aimed at 

satisfying the growing demand for lighter beers by urban 

consumers. By penetrating higher priced, more premium 

segments of the market and  diversifying its product portfolio 

ThaiBev aims to enhance its competitive position, both locally 

and internationally.

As Thailand's leading beer producer, ThaiBev owns and operate 

three breweries in Wangnoi, Bang Ban and Kamphaengphet 

with a total installed capacity of 1,090 million liters.

We are in the process of expanding our Kamphaengphet 

brewery to 900 million liters from its current capacity of 440 

million liters. Estimated at approximately Baht* 7,200 million in
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total investment, expansion of the brewery began in June 2004 

and is scheduled for completion by the first quarter of 2007. 

When completed, the Kamphaengphet facility will be the 

largest brewery in Southeast Asia and ThaiBev's aggregate 

brewing capacity would increase to approximately 1,550 million 

liters a year. Chang drinking water and Chang soda water are 

also produced at the three breweries. 

A.I.B.A. Gold Medal
Recognizing Chang’s world-class quality



Growing Stronger
            and 
            Stronger



Growing Stronger
            and 
            Stronger

27Annual Report 2005

A host of companies are involved in the production of 

spirits at Thai Beverage Public Company Limited. These 

companies are spearheaded by three enterprises: Sangsom 

Co., Ltd. (comprised of Fuengfuanant Co., Ltd., Mongkolsamai 

Co., Ltd., Thanapakdi Co., Ltd. and Kanchanasingkorn Co., 

Ltd.), Sura Bangyikhan Co., Ltd. (comprised of Athimart 

Co., Ltd., S.S. Karnsura Co., Ltd., Kankwan Co., Ltd. and 

Theparunothai Co., Ltd.) and Red Bull Distillery (1988) Co., 

Ltd. (comprised of United Winery & Distillery Co.Ltd., 

Simathurakij Co.Ltd., Nateechai Co., Ltd. and Luckchai 

Liquor Trading Co.Ltd.)

ThaiBev, with a portfolio of diverse spirits and multiple brands, is 

Thailand's leading producer of spirits. It produces, distributes 

and sells white spirits, Chinese herb spirits, sake and brown 

spirits (rum and whiskey) and also export spirits to a total of 19 

other countries in 2005. Total revenue from sales of spirits in 

2005 amounted to Baht* 49,910 million, an 18.3% growth from 

Baht 42,188 million in 2004.  

 Our 16 distilleries have a total installed capacity of 790 million 

liters per year, with a significant portion of the capacity 

provided by three major distilleries: Sang Som, Sura Bangyikarn 

and Red Bull Distillery. They are designed to produce approximately 

100, 85 and 85 million liters of spirits a year, respectively.

ThaiBev produces two brands of white spirits (Ruang Khao and 

Pai-Thong), three brands of Chinese herb spirits (Chiang-Chun, 

Chu Sib Neaw and Sua Dum), one brand of sake (Shinobu), and 

a large number of well-known brown spirits.

  

 Sang Som rum, ThaiBev's flagship brown spirits brand, is the 

leading brown spirits brand in Thailand. Sales of Sang Som 

brands, which include Sang Som Golden Medal, Sang Som          

Superior, Sang Som Premium and Sang Som Similan, account      

for a market share of approximately 10.7% of Thailand's total 

spirits sales in 2004(1). Winning Gold Medals at The Spain 

Growing Stronger and Stronger

Spirits

(1) Source: Canadean, “The Wine and Spirits Service, Spirits Annual Report - 2005 Cycle, Thailand”

*1 US Dollar is equivalent to approximately 40 Baht.
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International Quality to Alcohol Beverages for two consecutive 

years (1982 and 1983), Sang Som has gained greater access to 

many international markets in recent years.

Mekhong rum, with international renown and a legendary 

status as the preferred choice of brown spirit for the majority of 

Thais for several decades, is Thailand's third best-selling brown 

spirits.  Mungkorn Thong (or Golden Dragon) also contributes a 

fair share to the sales of brown spirits. Other brown spirits 

include Black Thai rum, Sing Thong rum, Black Cat whiskey, V.O. 

whiskey, and Blue and Crown 99 admix whiskies. Crown 99 

comprised the majority of sales of these products.

A key part of ThaiBev's success stems from its production   

expertise and unmatched resources, in terms of technology and 

capacity. The 16 production facilities which we own and operate 

are equipped with state-of-the-art equipment and machinery. 

With master blenders who have been trained at internationally 

accredited institutions overseas, we have substantial know-how 

in the production of spirits.  

 

 Significantly as well, the success achieved over the years by 

ThaiBev is owed to our ability to innovate and bring to the 

market new products to satisfy consumers' needs. We continued 

to focus on flexibility and quality that respond to market needs 

to ensure our leading position in numerous segments of the 

spirits market. 

Golden Medallion
Sang Som scores success in Spain 
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In October 2005, we rolled out Blue whiskey. Blended from 

quality five-year aged malt whiskey imported from Scotland as 

well as quality spirits produced in Thailand, Blue is intended to 

penetrate the growing higher priced segment of the locally 

produced Thai whiskey market. Launching new higher priced 

brown spirits brands is crucial to ThaiBev's ongoing effort to 

vitalize its portfolio of spirits brands.  

 In mid-March 2006, Niyomthai, a new white spirit is to be 

introduced in three different degrees of alcohol, 30, 35 and 40, 

respectively.

 ThaiBev will pursue a multi-brand strategy, as we have successfully 

done for our existing portfolio of economy spirits which 

comprises by far the largest share of the Thai spirits market. 

And, in line with ThaiBev's  'premiumization' strategy we will roll 

out new premium quality brands to take advantage of 

Thailand's growing spirits market and other markets overseas.  

As the largest spirits producer in Southeast Asia, ThaiBev’s 16 distilleries 
have a total production capacity of 790 million liters a year 



Meeting Energy             and Export               Needs

Being a major producer of ethanol,

ThaiBev contributes greatly to

the Thai government’s energy-saving initiative
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As a major producer of ethanol, Thai Alcohol Public Company 

Limited contributes to Thailand's effort to conserve energy. 

Ethanol, made from agricultural products such as cassava and 

molasses, is used to produce gasohol which the Thai                  

government has promoted as an alternative fuel to lessen the 

country's dependence on imports of crude oil and refined   

petroleum products. 

 

 In response to the government's initiative to substitute gasohol 

for premium gasoline (elimination of 95 octane gasoline by 

2007), commercial production and sales of ethanol of 99.5 

degrees began in September 2004. 

 In 2005, our largest customers of ethanol were Bangchak   

Petroleum Plc.,  The Shell Company of Thailand Ltd., and PTT Plc., 

which purchased 19.1 million liters, or 92.3%, of our ethanol 

sales volume. 

 We also exported our ethyl alcohol of 95 degrees mainly to 

customers in Japan for use in the cosmetic, food, and medical

industries. In 2005, our largest customers of ethyl alcohol of 95 

degrees were Mitsui & Co. UK Plc. and Mitsubishi Corporation, 

which purchased 21.8 million liters, or 75%, of our ethyl alcohol 

sales volume. 

 Expansion at the Thai Alcohol facility has been undertaken, 

enabling the company to produce approximately 7,400 tons per 

year of acetic acid, 3,000 tons per year of ethyl acetate and 

200,000 liters per day of 95 degrees refined alcohol.  

 We plan to supply acetic acid to companies in textile and 

dyeing, ethyl acetate to the paint industry and refined alcohol 

to companies in the spirits and chemical industries. 

 The expansion is an essential element of ThaiBev's strategy to 

increase exports of industrial alcohol products to key markets 

such as Japan, India and the Philippines. 

Meeting Energy and Export Needs

Industrial Alcohol
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ThaiBev has by far the largest production capacity of beer and 

spirits in Thailand, and one of the largest in Southeast Asia, for 

brewing beer and distilling spirits. But most importantly, it is our 

commitment to quality and value creation which have driven us 

to be uniquely positioned in the industry in terms of efficiency 

and environmental management. 

 

 We strive to meet the highest quality standards in every aspect 

of production. We control quality from the selection of raw 

ingredients through every stage of production to the final 

packaging of every product. We invest continually in technology 

and resources in order to meet quality assurance standards           

in compliance with the ISO certifications approved for all               

of our breweries and our distilleries. A sizable share of our 

investment is also dedicated to training our production staff 

and maintaining top-class brew masters and master blenders in 

the industry.

 Moreover, quality extends not only to the procurement, both 

locally and overseas, of all raw materials such as rice, barley, 

molasses, malt and yeasts to produce our beers and spirits. We 

also maintain stringent standards in aging spirits which is made 

possible by operating our own oak barrel production facility, the 

third largest in the world. 

Priority on Quality and Value

Production



      and Value
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Extensive research and development is continuously conducted 

by our subsidiaries and at our production facilities to ensure 

that all quality standards are maintained and improved in the 

procurement of agricultural raw ingredients, machinery and 

equipment as well as in the production and packaging of beers 

and spirits. 

 Our uncompromising quest for quality also covers the production 

of our own distillation towers and stills, fermentation equipment 

and steel tanks, among other machinery and equipment. 

Likewise, logistical needs in terms of transport for packaging

R&D : ensuring all quality standards are met - from
the procurement of raw ingredients, machinery and
equipment through every production process to the
packaging of beers and spirits. 
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and delivery of products as well as warehouses to ensure an 

uninterrupted supply of quality raw materials are managed 

efficiently by our subsidiaries.  The emphasis given to quality by 

all these subsidiaries contribute to maximizing costs as well as 

efficiency in all aspects of our production of beers and spirits. 

Furthermore, creating value from the production of beer and 

spirits has contributed substantially to our growth.  Numerous 

pure wastes resulting from production at our breweries and 

distilleries are managed most effectively as our subsidiaries are 

producing various animal feeds, organic fertilizers and bricks, 

among other by-products. These by-products are sold in 

Thailand and abroad. Realizing significant cost savings by 

reducing the annual amount of wastes our breweries and    

distilleries have to treat and dispose, the by-products business 

also has a positive impact on the environment. 

By-products produced from wastes at our breweries and distilleries yield

significant revenue and make a positive impact on the environment 

 



Brand-focused     Growth Strategy

Chang’s sponsorship of Everton Football Club

Connecting with soccer fans across the globe



Brand-focused     Growth Strategy

37Annual Report 2005

Marketing is a key contributor to the success story of Chang, 

Sang Som, Mekhong, Crown 99 and numerous other brands of 

ThaiBev. We are committed to building a clear, unique and 

enduring strategy to promote each of our products as a 

dynamic and modern brand with an overall theme of Thai 

appeal. Through our marketing, we attach values to our brands 

for consumers including social status, patriotism, generosity 

and fashion sense. 

 Moreover, the brands are exposed extensively throughout 

Thailand through a wide range of marketing channels, including, 

among others, television, billboard, print and radio advertising, 

and consumer promotions. ThaiBev also sponsors high profile 

sports, Thai festivals and other special events thereby giving 

broad exposure for our brands. 

 Through our event-based marketing subsidiary, ThaiBev 

sponsors a number of sporting activities, such as soccer. For the 

benefit of viewers throughout Thailand, we sponsored the live 

broadcasts of the 2002 FIFA World Cup which was staged in 

Japan and Korea. We have also agreed to sponsor the live Thai 

broadcast of the 2006 FIFA World Cup. Engaging in one of the 

largest and most prestigious sporting events in the world will 

enable us to realize significant benefits from the unique 

marketing opportunities that it provides. 

 By entering into a sponsorship agreement with Everton Football 

Club in 2004, ThaiBev became the only Thai company to be an 

official sponsor of an  English Premiership Football League Club 

which is widely followed by football fans in Thailand. As part of 

this agreement, the Chang logo is displayed prominently on 

Everton FC players' jerseys, in its stadium and on other team 

memorabilia. We extended our sponsorship in June 2005 for 

three years until the end of the 2007/2008 season.  

Marketing
Brand-focused Growth Strategy
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ThaiBev is also in the process of concluding a sponsorship 

agreement with the Football Association of Thailand for the 

main sponsorship of the Thai national football teams, which 

includes teams in various age categories. 

 Additionally, ThaiBev sponsors other activities through other 

brands. As an example, we sponsor contemporary events 

through Sang Som brand, and we sponsor Thai traditional   

activities, including kite festivals and Thai boat races, through 

our Mekhong brand. 

 All these sponsorships have provided us with excellent                

opportunities to build a strong identity of our brands and 

strengthen ties with our customers in Thailand and abroad. We 

intend to invest heavily in them and our other brand building 

efforts through advertising and promotions to enhance the 

positions of our brands. 

 To this end, we have invested, too, in recruiting professionals to 

complement our experienced and management team that has a 

proven track record in developing and building strong brand 

recognition, and delivering growth and profitability. We will be 

ably equipped to further our competitive strength by maximizing 

our penetration into new market segments and meet any 

challenges that lie ahead. 

 Integral also to the success in marketing our brands is the sales 

and distribution network of ThaiBev, which is one of the largest 

networks for consumer products in Thailand. 

 Divided into eight key regions, our distribution network is 

comprised of 90 branch offices. Each branch office is run by a 

manager and sales representatives who work closely with         

designated sales agents and direct sales teams to support 

product deliveries, coordinate with officers from the Excise  

Department, follow up on orders and manage inventory levels in 

the designated territory.

We operate warehouses in each of Thailand's 76 provinces. Each 

warehouse has an average inventory of two weeks for all our 

products to ensure timely and continuous distribution. Products 

are transported to the warehouses and some agents, when 

requested, by our own fleet of over 4,000 vehicles. 
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Distribution to international markets is managed through our 

own subsidiaries located overseas as well as exclusive distributors 

appointed in our export markets. 

 In Thailand, distribution is done essentially through three 

channels: agents, direct sales and modern trade. 

 

 Agents distribute to the traditional retail trade.  Under the 

guidance of our 90 branch managers and eight regional managers, 

the agents are well motivated through performance-based 

incentive schemes to achieve sales volume targets that are set 

in alignment with demand of the sale area and profit targets. 

 The direct sales network distributes products directly to end 

retailers, including both on-premise and off-premise consumption. 

They coordinate and interact in numerous ways in promoting 

our products and strengthening relationship with our retail 

channels.

 Distribution to the modern trade covers hypermarkets,                

supermarkets and convenience stores. A key account management 

team has been established to ensure that good relationship is 

maintained with each modern trade outlet and quality service is 

provided to meet or exceed the expectations of our modern 

trade customers. 

 

 In 2005, we continued as well to develop relationship with the 

hospitality trade, such as hotels, restaurants, bars and imported 

spirit vendors through the formation of new beverage teams. 

These relationship-enhancing efforts with all retail channels, 

including the strong relationships which we have built for many 

years with our agents countrywide, and the capability and 

strength of our sales and distribution  network are the key 

factors to ensure continued success in the sales of our beer and 

spirits brands.  

Strong sales and distribution network -- A key
success factor for ThaiBev’s beers and spirits
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ThaiBev: socially responsible corporate citizen caring

for the welfare of the community as well as

the progress and prosperity of the nation
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Being a good corporate citizen, ThaiBev passionately embraces 

its responsibility. We care not only for the welfare of local 

communities and their economies but also for the progress and 

prosperity of the nation. 

   

 ThaiBev contributes immensely to help develop and improve the 

competitiveness of a host of sports. These include essentially 

soccer, volleyball, golf, snooker, cycling and Thai boxing. We 

coordinate with a number of Thai sports associations and 

provide financial support yearly for staging competitions, 

and rewarding top-performing sports persons, at both 

national and regional levels. 

 Through Chang beer's sponsorship of the Everton Football Club, 

we offered three young talented players to learn English and 

train at the club's football academy for nine months, enabling 

them to advance their skills and thereby help raise standards of 

Thai soccer. To improve standards, ThaiBev has also sponsored 

world-class soccer teams, such as Real Madrid, to come to 

Thailand and compete with the Thai national team. 

One of the notable charitable activities ThaiBev undertakes 

annually is the donation of blankets to rural communities, 

particularly in upland regions of Thailand where harsh wintry 

conditions prevail. In 2005, we donated 200,000 blankets. More 

than 1.2 million blankets at a cost of approximately Baht* 180 

million have been distributed since the project began in 2000. 

The agricultural community, such as cultivators of molasses, 

cassava and rice, has also benefited as ThaiBev supports in their 

endeavor to improve crop yield.  Apart from the supply of raw 

ingredients for the production of beers and spirits, additional 

source of income is provided to cultivators from agricultural 

wastes such as rice husks that we convert into bio-gas to fuel 

boilers at our production facilities.  

 In a conscientious effort to help preserve the heritage of Thai 

arts and culture, ThaiBev gives generously to promote activities 

as well as knowledge of Thai classical music and dances, 

renovate mural paintings at Thai temples and support various 

cultural events and festivities staged in numerous provinces 

throughout Thailand. 

 ThaiBev reaches out, too, to lend a helping hand to healthcare 

needs of the general public through financial assistance 

extended to numerable foundations and through the provision 

of medical equipment and vehicles to hospitals. 

  

 Education also continues to be the focus of ThaiBev's concern 

for community development by contributing to the building of 

schools in rural communities and support of scholarship 

programs.

 Baht 40 million was donated to various government and      

non-government agencies in their effort to relieve the plight of 

victims of the tsunami tragedy that befell Thailand at the end of 

2004. 

A total of Baht 21 million has also been donated to support the 

reforestation program in commemoration of the 50th Anniversary 

of His Majesty the King of Thailand's Accession to the Throne. 

Baht 11 million and 5 million were given in 2004 and 2005, 

respectively, with the remaining Baht 5 million to be presented 

this year which marks the Golden Jubilee celebrations. 

 In 2005, ThaiBev contributed totally Baht 287 million to numerous 

charitable activities.  

For Community and Country

Corporate Responsibililty

*1 US Dollar is equivalent to approximately 40 Baht.
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Embracing honesty, integrity and transparency,

among other corporate governance

practices and principles, is crucial to fully realize our potential to grow
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ThaiBev strives to build a solid foundation on which it can fully 

realize its potential to grow. Integral to this undertaking is our 

commitment to corporate governance. Being transparent in the 

way we work. Upholding honesty and integrity in all our 

relationships. We maintain high standards in our adherence to 

corporate governance principles and practices in all aspects of 

our pursuit of progress. 

 The Board of Directors, which is comprised of 23 members, 

provides sound leadership and strategic direction for the 

company in achieving its mission and goals. The Board is 

responsible for identifying immediate and long term growth 

opportunities as well as managing the company's assets that 

would best serve the interest of the organization, and its 

employees and shareholders. The Board meets regularly,              

and as frequently as required to address immediate needs of         

the organization, and reports directly to the Chairman and 

President.

 In fulfilling its duties, the Board takes into consideration the 

recommendations of members of the Board of Executive 

Directors. This board is comprised of executive directors who 

oversee management of each of the business groups within the  

entire enterprise. The executive directors not only manage 

day-to day operations but also provide leadership that is needed 

to drive productivity and progress of ThaiBev.  

 In its task to ensure that the company is properly run in               

accordance with corporate governance principles and practices, 

the ThaiBev Board of Directors is supported by four committees, 

namely, Audit, Nomination, Remuneration and Risk Management 

committees.  

 The Audit Committee is comprised of independent members 

who oversee to ensure quality is maintained in the compilation 

of financial statements and implementation of internal control 

systems and other processes. 

 The Board of Directors is responsible for appointing the Nomination 

Committee and the Remuneration Committee by appraising and 

selecting candidates with adequate experience and qualifications 

to assume the position of director. The appointed directors are 

required to implement policies and regulations with regard to 

remuneration and present for approval of the Board prior to 

reporting to the shareholders' meeting.

Setting High Standards

Corporate Governance
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The Risk Management Committee is tasked to define and 

propose risk management policies and directions for the 

company and all its subsidiaries. In doing so, it takes into 

consideration numerous risk factors and contingency plans for 

emergencies as well as predictive and preventive measures 

covering all risks entailed in the performance of the company's 

businesses. It is also required to evaluate all risks for the 

company and its subsidiaries, and report directly to the Board of 

Directors.  

 Environmental regulations have become increasingly stringent 

in recent years, as are regulatory restrictions imposed on the 

alcoholic beverage industry. To better manage these concerns, 

and define codes of conduct in corporate governance principles 

and practices, the Board of Directors has given approval for the 

establishment of two new committees to oversee Environment 

and Corporate Governance.

Dividend and Investment Policies  

 

 ThaiBev has a dividend policy to pay dividend no less than 50% 

of net profits after deduction of all specified reserves as well     

as any retained loss. As a rule, dividend payment requires          

shareholders' approval. The Board of Directors can authorize 

payment of interim dividends, but any dividend paid out must 

be notified at the earliest shareholders' meeting. Policy on 

dividend payment may be changed by the board directors if 

deemed necessary to finance future growth. 
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The company sets a policy to invest in subsidiaries or new    

acquisitions that are related to the company's core businesses or 

with high potential for growth and profitability. To build a solid 

network of companies with sound performance, the company 

oversees to ensure that the subsidiaries operate business to 

comply with established rules and laws. The company also 

participates in their management as a shareholder with voting 

rights according to principles and practices prescribed by the 

company's board of directors. The company may appoint          

representatives to hold directorship in a subsidiary. The             

representatives can be chairman, president, director, senior 

manager or an independent person with suitable qualification 

and experience but with interests that do not conflict with the 

business of the subsidiary. They are required to manage the 

subsidiary in abidance with rules and regulations of the 

company and the subsidiary, as well as regulations and laws 

governing the operation of a business enterprise. 
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Report of Audit 
     CommitteeThe Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (the Committee) is comprised of three directors named below.

 1.Mr. Staporn Kavitanon  Chairman of the Audit Committee

 2.Mr. Kanung Luchai  Member of the Audit Coummittee

 3.Mr. Manu Leopairote  Member of the Audit Committee

Each member of the Committee is an independent director who meets the independence, experience and other qualification 

requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange  Commission

The Committee has reviewed and discussed the Company’s audited financial statements with Management and KPMG Phoomchai  

Autit Limited, the Company’s external auditor for 2005, in order to express an opinion of the conformity on the Company’s audited 

financial statements with generally accepted accounting principles.  The Committee also reviewed and expressed an opinion on audit 

plan as well as  considered results of the audit from the Company’s internal audit division to ensure that the internal  control system is 

adequate and appropriate.

The Committee has recommended to the Board to propose the continuous nomination of KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited as the 

Company’s external auditor for the year 2006 and the remuneration to the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for approval.

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Committee has its opinion that the Company has an adequate internal 

control and the Company’s financial statement is fairly presented in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles.

Staporn Kavitanon

Chairman of the Audit Committee

February 20, 2006

Report of the Audit Committee
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Audit Report of Certified        Public Accountant

Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited

To the shareholders of Thai Beverage Public Company Limited 

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)

I have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and subsidiaries as at 31 December 2005 and 

2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years then 

ended, and the separate balance sheets of Thai Beverage Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 and the related 

separate statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years then ended. The Company’s 

management are responsible for the correctness and completeness of information presented in these financial statements.  My   

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I plan and perform the 

audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes 

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes    

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 

statement presentation.  I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial positions of 

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and subsidiaries as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 and the consolidated results of their            

operations, and their cash flows for each of the years then ended, and the separate financial positions as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 

and the separate results of operations and cash flows for each of the years then ended of Thai Beverage Public Company Limited, in 

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Nirand Lilamethwat

Certified Public Accountant

Registration Number 2316

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.

Bangkok 

24 February 2006

Audit Report of Certified Public Accountant
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Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)



Current Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,250,647,974 885,997,034 18,562,884 17,770,353
Current invesments  9,999,590 1,529,688 - -
Trade accounts receivable, net 6 400,602,176 840,645,774 - -
Short-term loans to and

     amounts due from related parties 4 142,938,072 5,553,643,276 15,041,591,940 15,773,869,397
Inventories, net 7, 14 26,034,676,426 30,737,916,286 - -
Other current assets 8 2,559,766,551 3,528,019,410 9,556,739 225,274
Total current assets  32,398,630,789 41,547,751,468 15,069,711,563 15,791,865,024

Non-current assets     
Investments accounted for

     using the equity method 1, 9, 17 - - 68,045,384,180 59,761,276,745
Other long-term investments, net 10 1,274,810 1,110,675,466 - - 
Property, plant and equipment, net 11, 14, 17 48,294,951,513 45,950,188,778 751,334,172 671,691,657
Intangible assets, net 12 262,194,847 233,585,766 8,271,709 1,293,023
Other non-current assets, net 13 254,326,795 279,241,371 68,000  -
Total non-current assets  48,812,747,965 47,573,691,381 68,805,058,061 60,434,261,425
Total assets 1 81,211,378,754 89,121,442,849 83,874,769,624 76,226,126,449

Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)

Balance Sheets
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

Current liabilities     
Bank overdrafts and short-term

   loans from financial institutions 14 39,300,152,137 44,720,146,316 36,600,000,000 38,128,565,683
Trade accounts payable  1,504,617,272 1,797,927,537 - -
Current portion of long-term loan 14 1,086,600,000 1,320,000,000 - -
Short-term loans from and     
     amounts due to related parties 4 38,335,828 562,137,049 15,610,981,855 7,699,630,273
Income tax payable  2,516,300,729 2,935,856,027  97,049,614 9,388,368
Other current liabilities 15 5,204,982,192 3,186,979,339 186,751,240 67,135,112
Total current liabilities  49,650,988,158 54,523,046,268 52,494,782,709 45,904,719,436

Non-current liabilities     
Long-term loan 14 - 1,086,600,000 - - 
Excess of share loss over investments in subsidiaries  - - 677,227 1,608,391
Other non-current liabilities  194,362,158 149,233,856 13,281,250 - 
Total non-current liabilities  194,362,158 1,235,833,856 13,958,477 1,608,391
Total liabilities 1 49,845,350,316 55,758,880,124 52,508,741,186 45,906,327,827

Shareholders' equity

Share capital 16, 26
     Authorised share capital  29,000,000,000 22,000,000,000 29,000,000,000 22,000,000,000
     Issued and paid-up share capital  22,000,000,000 22,000,000,000 22,000,000,000 22,000,000,000
Difference arising from business restructuring 1 (15,979,264,833) (6,609,854,019) (15,979,264,833) (9,652,618,122)
Currency translation reserve 17 (5,341,471) (2,980) (5,341,471) (2,980)
Fair value and revaluation reserve 11, 17 6,584,735,444 6,699,299,782 6,584,735,444 6,699,299,782
Retained earnings      
     Appropriated - legal reserve 16, 17 1,110,000,000 2,500,000 1,110,000,000 2,500,000
     Unappropriated  17,655,899,298 11,270,619,942 17,655,899,298 11,270,619,942
Total equity of the Company's shareholders  31,366,028,438 33,362,562,725 31,366,028,438 30,319,798,622
Equity not attributable to the Company 1, 18 - - - -
Total shareholders' equity 1 31,366,028,438 33,362,562,725 31,366,028,438 30,319,798,622
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  81,211,378,754 89,121,442,849 83,874,769,624 76,226,126,449

The Company

2005 20042005 2004

Consolidated

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Note (Restated)

(in Baht)
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Revenues  4   
Revenue from sales  92,091,206,853 90,126,263,502 - -
Interest income  62,227,015 14,854,995 616,562,118 230,959,436
Management fee  - - 2,349,829,494 1,297,042,542
Other income  224,704,389 478,456,246 2,026,646 877
Share of profits from investments  - - 9,812,306,781 10,198,566,482
   accounted for using the equity method

Total revenues  92,378,138,257 90,619,574,743 12,780,725,039 11,726,569,337

Expenses 4   
Cost of sales  63,143,480,507 63,603,128,906  -  -
Selling and administrative expenses 19 12,516,953,477 11,115,416,548 722,625,339 251,352,378
Total expenses  75,660,433,984 74,718,545,454 722,625,339 251,352,378

Profit before interest and

   income tax expenses  16,717,704,273 15,901,029,289 12,058,099,700 11,475,216,959
Interest expense  1,595,388,112 1,740,311,185 1,775,183,024 1,078,320,657
Income tax expense  4,712,948,909 4,492,142,205 150,137,320 62,162,566
Net profit before the portion not

   attributable to the Company  10,409,367,252 9,668,575,899 10,132,779,356 10,334,733,736
Net loss not attributable to the Company 1, 18 -  (748,892,779)  -  -
Net profit 1 10,409,367,252 10,417,468,678 10,132,779,356 10,334,733,736

Pro forma earnings per share 20 - 0.44 - -
Basic earnings per share 1, 20 0.47 0.47 0.46 0.47

Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

(Restated)
(in Baht)

The Company

2005 20042005 2004

Consolidated

Note
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Consolidated (2004: Restated)

Note

Issued and
paid-up
share

capital

Total equity
of the

Company’s
shareholders

Equity not
attributable

to
the Company

Total
shareholders’

equity

Difference
arising from

business
restructuring

Currency
translation

reserve

Retained earnings

Appropriated
legal reserve

Unappropriated

Fair value
and

revaluation
reserve

(in Baht)

Balance at 1 January 2004 1, 2 22,000,000,000 (4,682,789,161) - 6,452,967,666 - 938,386,206 24,708,564,711 227,522,237 24,936,086,948
Dividend paid by subsidiaries

   before business restructuring  - (2,009,799,800) - - - - (2,009,799,800) - (2,009,799,800)
Currency translation reserve  - - (2,980) - - - (2,980) - (2,980)
Surplus on revaluation of assets 11, 17 - - - 246,302,116 - - 246,302,116 78,462 246,380,578
Reversal of unrealised loss on investment  - - - 30,000 - - 30,000 - 30,000
Legal reserve 16, 17 - - - - 2,500,000 (2,500,000) - - -
Net profit (loss) 1 - 82,734,942 - - - 10,334,733,736 10,417,468,678 (748,892,779) 9,668,575,899
Equity distributions not attributable

   to the Company  - - - - - - - 521,292,080 521,292,080
Balance at 31 December 2004  22,000,000,000 (6,609,854,019) (2,980) 6,699,299,782 2,500,000 11,270,619,942 33,362,562,725 - 33,362,562,725
Consideration paid to shareholders of          
   subsidiaries for business restructuring 1 - (9,645,998,710) - - - - (9,645,998,710) - (9,645,998,710)
Currency translation reserve  - - (5,338,491) - - - (5,338,491) - (5,338,491)
Surplus on revaluation of assets 11, 17 - - - (114,483,767) - - (114,483,767) - (114,483,767)
Unrealised loss on investment  - - - (80,571) - - (80,571) - (80,571)
Legal reserve 16, 17 - - - - 1,107,500,000 (1,107,500,000) - - -
Dividend paid by the Company 16 - - - - - (2,640,000,000) (2,640,000,000) - (2,640,000,000)
Net profit 1 - 276,587,896 - - - 10,132,779,356 10,409,367,252 - 10,409,367,252
Balance at 31 December 2005  22,000,000,000 (15,979,264,833) (5,341,471) 6,584,735,444 1,110,000,000 17,655,899,298 31,366,028,438 - 31,366,028,438

Appropriated
legal reserve

Unappropriated

The Company

Note

Issued and
paid-up
share

capital

Total equity
of the Company’s

shareholders

Difference
arising from

business
restructuring

Currency
translation

reserve

Retained earningsFair value
and

revaluation
reserve

(in Baht)

Balance at 1 January 2004  22,000,000,000 (9,652,618,122) - 6,452,967,666 - 938,386,206 19,738,735,750
Currency translation reserve  - - (2,980) - - - (2,980)
Surplus on revaluation of assets 11, 17 - - - 246,302,116 - - 246,302,116
Reversal of unrealised loss on investment  - - - 30,000 - - 30,000
Legal reserve 16, 17 - - - - 2,500,000 (2,500,000) -
Net profit  - - - - - 10,334,733,736 10,334,733,736
Balance at 31 December 2004  22,000,000,000 (9,652,618,122) (2,980) 6,699,299,782 2,500,000  11,270,619,942 30,319,798,622
Difference arising from business restructuring 1 - (6,326,646,711) - - - - (6,326,646,711)
Currency translation reserve  - - (5,338,491) - - - (5,338,491)
Surplus on revaluation of assets 11, 17 - - - (114,483,767) - - (114,483,767)
Unrealised loss on investment  - - - (80,571) - - (80,571)
Legal reserve 16, 17 - - - - 1,107,500,000 (1,107,500,000) -
Dividend paid by the Company 16 - - - - - (2,640,000,000) (2,640,000,000)
Net profit  - - - - - 10,132,779,356 10,132,779,356
Balance at 31 December 2005  22,000,000,000 (15,979,264,833) (5,341,471) 6,584,735,444 1,110,000,000 17,655,899,298 31,366,028,438



Cash flows from operating activities      
Net profit  10,409,367,252 10,417,468,678 10,132,779,356  10,334,733,736

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation  4,282,216,662 4,294,291,675 7,837,319 348,848
Loss on land revaluation  - 110,989,069 - -
Allowance for obsolete inventories  162,903,101 33,687,057 - -
Share of profits from investments

accounted for using the equity method  - - (9,812,306,781) (10,198,566,482)
Allowance for impairment loss on equipment  921,096 - - - 
(Gain) Loss on sale and disposal

of property, plant and equipment  (13,258,807) 28,300,908 - - 
Unrealised gain on exchange rate  (9,891,782) (13,291,910) - - 
Net loss not attributable to the Company  - (748,892,779) - - 
Provisions  70,833,333 - 13,281,250 - 
Interest income  (62,227,015) (14,854,995) (616,562,118) (230,959,436)
Interest expense  1,595,388,112 1,740,311,185 1,775,183,024 1,078,320,657
Income tax expense  4,712,948,909 4,492,142,205 150,137,320 62,162,566
Profit from operating activities before    
     changes in operating assets and liabilities  21,149,200,861 20,340,151,093 1,650,349,370 1,046,039,889

Changes in operating assets and liabilities      
Decrease in trade accounts receivable  440,235,656 236,673,096 - - 
(Increase) Decrease in amount

      due from related parties  5,033,867,196 (4,659,917,818) (880,381,965) (167,085,948)
Decrease in inventories  4,540,336,760 1,401,042,899 - - 
Increase (Decrease) in other current assets  970,493,642 1,561,969,089 (9,331,464) (225,274)
Decrease in trade accounts payable  (291,851,467) (562,626,982) - -
Increase (Decrease) in amounts 

      due to related parties  (244,841,221) 54,672,583 7,509,246 3,430,874
Income tax paid  (5,132,504,208) (3,687,627,173) (62,476,074) (28,494,765)
Increase (Decrease) in other current liabilities  2,026,006,318 17,999,127 105,665,053 (39,997,648)
Increase (Decrease) in other non-current liabilities  (25,705,031) 36,369,931 - -
Net cash provided by operating activities   28,465,238,506 14,738,705,845 811,334,166 813,667,128
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Cash flows from investing activities     
Interest received  60,219,146 15,561,977 573,221,540 221,289,117
(Increase) Decrease in current investments  (8,469,902) 100,522,121 - -  
(Increase) Decrease in short-term loans to

        related parties  376,838,008 252,991,992 1,656,000,000 (13,295,900,000)
Decrease in other short-term loan receivable  - 2,000,000 - -
Increase in investments accounted for using

        the equity method  - - (535,046,490) (3,820,942)
Consideration paid to shareholders of      
     subsidiaries for the business retructuring 1 (9,645,998,710) - (9,619,911,346) -
Dividend received from subsidiaries  - - 5,235,676,477 1,066,499,142
 (Increase) Decrease in other

     long-term investments  1,109,320,085 (1,099,819,518) - 1,775
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (7,220,146,963) (3,070,847,481) (68,425,187) (537,342,861)
Cash received from sales of property, plant

       and equipment  551,256,043 173,916,715 - -
Increase in intangible assets  (73,555,661) (33,656,970) (8,206,360) (1,359,330)
(Increase) decrease in other non-current assets  9,626,623 223,741,699 (68,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities  (14,840,911,331) (3,435,589,465) (2,766,759,366) (12,550,633,099)
Cash flows from financing activities     
Interest paid  (1,595,383,565) (1,772,256,967) (1,731,616,587) (1,073,542,746)
Increase (Decrease) in bank overdrafts and 

     short-term loans from financial institutions  (5,419,994,179) (2,082,758,300) (1,528,565,682) 5,028,565,682
Increase (Decrease) in short-term loans from

     related parties  (278,960,000) (1,117,939,023) 7,856,400,000 7,684,200,000
Decrease in other short-term loan payable  - (150,000,000) - -
Decrease in long-term loans  (1,320,000,000) (7,766,000,000) - -
Dividend paid by subsidiaries

        before business restructuring     - (2,009,799,800) - -
Dividend paid by the Company 16 (2,640,000,000) - (2,640,000,000) -
Equity contributions not attributable

        to the Company 1 - 521,292,080 - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities  (11,254,337,744) (14,377,462,010) 1,956,217,731 11,639,222,936
Currency translation reserve 17 (5,338,491) (2,980) - -
Net increase (decrease) in  cash and cash equivalents   2,364,650,940 (3,074,348,610) 792,531 (97,743,035)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  885,997,034 3,960,345,644 17,770,353 115,513,388
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 5 3,250,647,974 885,997,034 18,562,884 17,770,353
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Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 24 February 2006.

1  General information and business restructuring

General information

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited, the “Company”, was incorporated and registered as a public company in Thailand on 29 October 2003.  

The registered office of the Company is at 14 Vibhavadi Rangsit Road, Chomphon, Chatuchak, Bangkok.   On 8 July 2005, the Extraordinary 

Meeting of Shareholders of the Company No. 1/2005 unanimously approved to change the Company’s name to “Thai Beverage Public Company 

Limited”.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries, the “Group” are the production, distribution and marketing of alcoholic and non-

alcoholic beverages, industrial alcohol and other byproducts.

The Group primarily operates in Thailand and employs 19,932 employees as of 31 December 2005 (2004: 22,017).  The employee costs of the 

Group for the year ended 31 December 2005 amounted to Baht 3,986.10 million (2004: Baht 3,645.97 million). 

Business restructuring

The Company was formed in 2003 to combine the separate beverages businesses of the ultimate majority shareholder, which were held as part 

of the operations of 66 separate companies, into a single group of companies. Pursuant to the restructuring these businesses were under the 

common control of the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.   At the end of 2003, the Company held investments in 47 direct 

subsidiary companies and 9 indirect subsidiary companies.

As the same ultimate controlling shareholder controlled the businesses and operations transferred to the Company both before and after the 

recent restructuring, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a business combination involving entities and 

businesses under common control. Accordingly, the transfer of businesses and operations has been accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling 

of interests and the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities transferred have been accounted for at book values. 

The difference between the cost of the combination and the carrying amounts of net identifiable assets at the date of combination (except for 

businesses acquired that were not under common control, whereby net identifiable assets were measured at their fair value) was recorded as 

“Difference arising from business restructuring”, which is shown as a reduction in shareholders’ equity.



The beverages businesses were transferred to and from the following companies:

* The businesses transferred were completed in 2003.     **  The businesses transferred were completed in 2004.

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

Business transferred from  Business transferred to

Wattanapat Trading Co., Ltd*  Thipchalothorn Co., Ltd. & Krittayabun Co., Ltd.

B.T.C.L. Trading PCL.*  Thipchalothorn Co., Ltd. & Krittayabun Co., Ltd.

Praserdsuk Karnsura Co., Ltd.**  Num Nakorn Co., Ltd.

Peampolkanka Co., Ltd. **  Num Thurakij Co., Ltd.

Parksiri Co., Ltd. **  Num Kijjakarn Co., Ltd.

Yingmitr Co., Ltd. **  Num Palang Co., Ltd.

Permpoonkarnsura Co., Ltd. **  Num Yuk Co., Ltd.

Sermsarng Karnkaa Co., Ltd. **  Num Muang Co., Ltd.

Surapiset Rungroj Co., Ltd. **  Red Bull Distillery (1988) Co., Ltd.

Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited

During 2003, as part of the business restructuring, some assets, liabilities and operations of beverages businesses were transferred from          

companies outside the Group, under the common control of the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, to companies now within the 

Group.  These transactions are also recognised as business combinations involving businesses under common control and have been accounted 

for in a manner similar to a pooling of interests, whereby the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities have been accounted for at book  

values.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, those assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses that are clearly applicable to the businesses 

and operations transferred are included in the consolidated financial statements and are stated at their carrying values, after adjusting for 

intercompany transactions and transactions with the ultimate controlling shareholder. Expenses for which the specific identification method 

was not practical have been allocated on a percentage of sales basis. Management believes that this is a reasonable basis of estimating what 

the expenses would have been on a standalone basis. 
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As at 1 January 2004, some assets and liabilities clearly applicable to the businesses transferred had not been formally transferred to the Group.  

Therefore, the portion of net assets not formally transferred to the Group is reflected as “Equity not Attributable to the Company” in the  

Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity.  The transfer of assets and liabilities associated with the 

businesses transferred was completed during 2004.  The profits or losses earned by these businesses before being transferred to the Group were 

not contributed to the Group on transfer and were retained by the selling company.  As financial results of these businesses have been included 

for the year ended 31 December 2004, the losses incurred by these businesses before being transferred are not attributable to shareholders of 

Company and are presented as “Net loss not attributable to the Company” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Cash Flows.

The movements in “Equity not attributable to the Company”, presented in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for 

the year ended 31 December 2004 include the net loss not attributable to the Company of Baht 748.89 million. The item also includes equity 

contributions received of Baht 521.29 million. As at 31 December 2004, all assets and liabilities applicable to the businesses transferred had been 

formally transferred, therefore all consolidated net assets were attributable to the Company.

Subsequently, in 2005, the Group entered into four transfer transactions involving entities under common control, namely the transfer of 

Cosmos Brewery (Thailand) Co., Ltd., T.C.C. Cosmo Corporation Ltd., Beer Chang Co., Ltd. and Archa Beer Co., Ltd. from the ultimate controlling 

shareholder, who controlled the businesses and operations of the four companies transferred to the Group both before and after the transfer.  

Accordingly, the transfer of businesses and operations has been accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling of interests, as previously applied 

to similar transactions in 2003, as discussed above.  As such, the Company has prepared the consolidated financial statements as if the transfers 

were completed at the beginning of the earliest period presented.

The result of the transfer was an increase in “Difference arising from business restructuring” of Baht 6,326.65 million.  This represents the    

difference between consideration of Baht 9,646 million paid to the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group and the carrying amounts of 

net identifiable assets of the four companies at the date of the transfer of Baht 3,319.35 million.



Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
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Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited

Restatement

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2004 have been restated as a result of four transactions involving 

entities under common control, which occurred in 2005 and were accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling of interest method.  The 

effects of the restatement on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2004 and the consolidated statement of income for the year 

ended 31 December 2004 are summarised as follows:  

Balance sheet     
Total assets 85,632.11 3,489.33 89,121.44
Total liabilities 55,312.32   446.56 55,758.88
Difference arising from business restructuring (9,652.62) 3,042.77 (6,609.85)
Shareholders’ equity 30,319.79 3,042.77 33,362.56
 Results previously reported Effect of the restatement Results after restatement

Statement of income     
Net profit 10,334.73 82.73 10,417.46
Basic earnings per share (Baht) 0.47 - 0.47

Consolidated

2004

(in million Baht)

Balance previously reported  Effect of the restatement Balance after restatement
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Current Shareholding Structure

As of 31 December, the Group consisted of the Company and the following subsidiaries:

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)
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For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004
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Direct subsidiaries

1 Beer Thai (1991) PCL. Thailand Beer brewery 100.00 100.00
2 Beer Thip Brewery (1991) Co., Ltd. Thailand Beer brewery 100.00 100.00
3 Sangsom Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
4 Fuengfuanant Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
5 Mongkolsamai Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
6 Thanapakdi Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
7 Kanchanasingkorn Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
8 Sura Bangyikhan Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
9 Athimart Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
10 S.S. Karnsura Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
11 Kankwan Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
12 Theparunothai Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
13 Red Bull Distillery (1988) Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
14 United Winery and Distillery Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
15 Simathurakij Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
16 Nateechai Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
17 Luckchai Liquor Trading Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distillery 100.00 100.00
18 Thai Alcohol PCL. Thailand Alcohol distillery 100.00 100.00
19 Pomthip Co., Ltd. Thailand Beer distributor 100.00 100.00
20 Pomkit Co., Ltd. Thailand Beer distributor 100.00 100.00
21 Pomkung Co., Ltd. Thailand Beer distributor 100.00 100.00

Nature of Business
Ownership interest

2005            2004

(%)

Subsidiaries

Country
of

incorporation
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Direct subsidiaries    
22 Pomchok Co., Ltd. Thailand Beer distributor 100.00 100.00
23 Pomcharoen Co., Ltd. Thailand Beer distributor 100.00 100.00
24 Pomburapa Co., Ltd. Thailand Beer distributor 100.00 100.00
25 Num Yuk Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distributor 100.00 100.00
26 Num Kijjakarn Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distributor 100.00 100.00
27 Num Palang Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distributor 100.00 100.00
28 Num Muang Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distributor 100.00 100.00
29 Num Nakorn Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distributor 100.00 100.00
30 Num Thurakij Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits distributor 100.00 100.00
31 Thipchalothorn Co., Ltd. Thailand Beer and sprits agency 100.00 100.00
32 Krittayabun Co., Ltd. Thailand Beer and sprits agency 100.00 100.00
33 Surathip Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits agency 100.00 100.00
34 Sunthronpirom Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits agency 100.00 100.00
35 Piromsurang Co., Ltd. Thailand Spirits agency 100.00 100.00
36 Bionic Humus Co., Ltd. Thailand Trading of fertilizer 100.00 100.00
37 Maharas Agri Co., Ltd. Thailand Japanese rice farming 100.00 100.00
38 Thai Molasses Co., Ltd. Thailand Trading of molasses 99.72 99.72
39 Additive Food Co., Ltd. Thailand Trading of feeds 100.00 100.00
40 Pan International (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Thailand Trading of equipment and supplies 100.00 100.00
41 Charun Business 52 Co., Ltd. Thailand Brick producer 100.00 100.00
42 Thai Cooperage Co., Ltd. Thailand Oak barrel producer 100.00 100.00

Nature of Business

Ownership interest

2005            2004

(%)

Subsidiaries

Country
of

incorporation

Current Shareholding Structure

As of 31 December, the Group consisted of the Company and the following subsidiaries:
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*** These subsidiaries were transferred during 2005.

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

63

** This subsidiary was acquired in 2005.
# These are currently non-trading companies.

43 Bang-Na Logistic Co., Ltd. Thailand Trading of bottles 100.00 100.00
44 Sahatipkarnkonsong Co., Ltd. Thailand Transportation 100.00 100.00
45 Thai Beverage Marketing Co., Ltd. Thailand Import and export spirits for 100.00 100.00
 (Formerly Thai Beverages Marketing Co., Ltd.)  Trading/ international marketing  
46 Dhanasindhi Co., Ltd. Thailand Construction 100.00 100.00
47 Dhospaak Co., Ltd. Thailand Advertising agency 100.00 100.00
48 International Beverage Holdings Ltd.* Hong Kong Holding company 100.00 100.00
49 Cosmos Brewery (Thailand) Co., Ltd. *** Thailand Beer brewery 100.00 - 
50 T.C.C. Cosmo Corporation Ltd. *** Thailand Trademark holding 100.00 -
51 Beer Chang Co., Ltd. *** Thailand Trademark holding and production

    of concentrate materials 100.00 -
52 Archa Beer Co., Ltd. *** Thailand Trademark holding and production

    of concentrate materials 100.00 -
Indirect subsidiaries

53 Thai Thum Distillery Co., Ltd. # Thailand Trading of spirits 99.90 99.90
54 Sura Piset Sahasan Co., Ltd. # Thailand Production and distribution of spirits 100.00 100.00
55 Sura Piset Sampan Co., Ltd. # Thailand Production and distribution of spirits 100.00 100.00
56 Sura Piset Phatra Lanna Co., Ltd. # Thailand Production and distribution of spirits 100.00 100.00
57 Sura Piset Thipparat Co., Ltd. # Thailand Production and distribution of spirits 100.00 100.00
58 Muangkij Co., Ltd. # Thailand Import of oak woods 100.00 100.00
59 Sint Ek Panich Co., Ltd. # Thailand Mining 100.00 99.99
60 Pan Alcohol Co., Ltd. # Thailand Production and distribution of vinegar 100.00 100.00
61 Banglen Agriculture Co., Ltd. # Thailand Agriculture 100.00 99.99
62 Vitayathan Co., Ltd. * Thailand Environmental public relations 100.00 100.00
63 Interbev (Singapore) Limited ** Singapore Trading and investment 100.00 -

Nature of Business

Ownership interest

2005            2004

(%)

Subsidiaries

Country
of

incorporation
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2   Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements issued for Thai reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language. This English translation of the financial 

statements has been prepared for the convenience of readers not conversant with the Thai language.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Accounting Standards (“TAS”) including related interpretations and guidelines 

promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions and with generally accepted accounting principles in Thailand.

In 2005, the Group adopted the following new TAS which are relevant to its operations:

TAS 52 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

TAS 53 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The adoption of these new TAS has no material effect on the financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht and rounded to the nearest Baht, unless otherwise stated. They are prepared on the historical 

cost basis except for the following assets which are stated at fair value: land and investment in available-for-sale securities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TAS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 

affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are 

based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form 

the basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 

which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects 

both current and future periods.

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries, (together 

referred to as the “Group”) and some businesses that were transferred from companies outside the Group, under the common control of the 

ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, to companies now within the Group as detailed in Note 1.
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3   Significant accounting policies

3.1  Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are those companies controlled by the Company.  Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern 

the financial and operating policies of a company so as to obtain benefits from its activities.  The financial statements of subsidiaries are 

included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Significant intercompany transactions among the consolidated businesses are eliminated on consolidation.

3.2  Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the transactions.  

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange 

rates ruling at that date.  Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the statement of income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at cost in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the 

date of the transactions.

Foreign entities

The assets and liabilities of foreign entities are translated to Thai Baht at the average foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

The revenues and expenses of foreign entities are translated to Thai Baht at rates approximating the average foreign exchange rates ruling at 

the dates of the transactions.

Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in a separate component of shareholders’ equity until disposal of the invest-

ments.

3.3  Derivative financial instruments

Forward exchange contracts are treated as off-balance sheet items.
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3.4  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid short-term investments.  Bank overdrafts that are repayable 

on demand are a component of financing activities for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

3.5  Trade and other accounts receivable

Trade and other accounts receivables (including balances with related parties) are stated at their invoice value less allowance for doubtful 

accounts.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is assessed primarily on analysis of payment histories and future expectations of customer payments.  Bad 

debts are written off when incurred.

3.6  Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  

Cost of raw materials, packaging materials, work in progress and finished goods is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and 

comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.  

In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating 

capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.7  Investments

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of the Company are accounted for using the equity method.

Investments in other equity securities

Marketable equity securities classified as available-for-sale equity securities are stated at fair value with any resultant gains or losses being 

recognised directly in equity.  The exception is impairment losses, which are recognised in the statement of income.

The fair value of financial instruments classified as available-for-sale is determined as the quoted bid price at the balance sheet date.

Equity securities which are not marketable are stated at cost less impairment losses.
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Disposal of investments

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount together with the associated cumulative gain or 

loss that was reported in equity is recognised in the statement of income.

3.8  Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except for land, which is stated at its revalued 

amount.  

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use is classified as property, plant and equipment and stated at cost until construction or 

development is complete. 

Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group substantially assumes all the risk and rewards from leased assets are classified as finance leases.  Property, plant and 

equipment acquired by way of finance leases is capitalised at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the 

inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and 

reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are charged directly 

to the statement of income.

Revalued assets

Land is stated at fair value, based on valuations by independent professional valuators.  The Group’s policy requires an appraisal to be conducted every 

three to five years or when there are factors that might materially impact the value of the land, to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does 

not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date. 

Any increase in value, on revaluation, is credited to the revaluation reserve unless it offsets a previous decrease in value recognised in the statement of 

income.  A decrease in value is recognised in the statement of income to the extent it exceeds an increase previously recognised in the revaluation 

reserve.  Upon disposal, any related revaluation surplus is transferred directly from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not taken into 

account in calculating the gain or loss on disposal.
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Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable 

that the future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Group.  All 

other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, 

plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land improvement 5-20 years

Building and structures 10-30 years

Building improvements 5-20 years

Machinery and equipment 5-30 years

Oak barrels 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3-10 years

Vehicles  5-10 years

No depreciation is provided on freehold land and assets under construction.

3.9  Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.  

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the statement of income on a straight-line and unit of production basis over the estimated useful lives of each part 

of an item of intangible asset. Intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use.  The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Trademark 10 years (straight-line method)

Computer software 5-10 years (straight-line method)

Broadcasting rights  1-4 years (unit of production method)

Leasehold Lease term (straight-line method)
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3.10  Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  

If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.  The 

impairment loss is recognised in the statement of income unless it reverses a previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged 

to equity.

3.11  Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognised initially at cost less attributable transaction charges.  Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-

bearing liabilities are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the statement of 

income over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

3.12  Trade and other accounts payable

Trade and other accounts payable (including balances with related parties) are stated at cost as per invoice value.

3.13  Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is 

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 

the obligation.  If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

 3.14 Difference arising from business restructuring

Difference arising from business restructuring relates to the restructuring of businesses under the common control of the ultimate majority 

shareholder of the Company and arises from the difference between the cost of the combination and the carrying amounts of net identifiable 

assets at the date of combination (except for businesses acquired that are not under common control, net identifiable assets are measured at 

the fair value).  The Company recognises the difference arising from business restructuring under shareholders’ equity until disposal of the 

investment.
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3.15  Revenue

Revenue excludes value added taxes or other sales taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade discounts.

Sale of goods and services rendered

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the statement of income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been 

transferred to the buyer.  No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated 

costs, the probable return of goods or the continuing management involvement with the goods.

As soon as the outcome of a contract for the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the contract is recognised 

in the statement of income in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract at the balance sheet date.  When the outcome of the 

contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and expenses are recognised in the statement of 

income in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract at the balance sheet date.  The stage of completion is assessed using the 

percentage of completion method, which is measured by the project engineer.  When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total 

contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised immediately as an expense in the statement of income.

Interest and dividend income

Interest income is recognised in the statement of income as it accrues.  Dividend income is recognised in the statement of income on the date 

the Company’s / the Group’s right to receive payments is established, which in the case of quoted securities is usually the ex-dividend date.

3.16  Expenses

Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of income on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.  Lease 

incentives received are recognised in the statement of income as an integral part of the total lease payments made.  Contingent rentals are 

charged to the statement of income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Finance costs

Interest expenses and similar costs are charged to the statement of income in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that 

they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial 

period of time to be prepared for its intended use or sale.  The interest component of finance lease payments is recognised in the statement of 

income using the effective interest rate method.

Research and development

Research and development costs, including costs of developing new drinks products and package design is expensed in the period in which it is 

incurred.

Other income and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.

3.17  Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current tax.  Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, 

using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Significant transactions with related parties for the years ended 31 December, are summarised as follows:
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Revenue       
Revenue from sales 194.00 342.47 - -
Service income 9.03 10.30 2,349.83 1,297.04
Interest income 27.45 5.06 615.87 230.30
Share of profits from investments 

accounted for using the equity method - - 9,812.31 10,198.56
Other income 24.96 41.94 1.92 -
Expenses       
Purchases of raw materials and packaging 4,126.00 4,427.85 -
Production service fees 10.70 1.44  -

The Company

2005 20042005 2004

(in million Baht)

Consolidated

Pricing policies

Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited

4   Related party transactions and balances

Related parties are those parties linked to companies in the Group by common shareholders or directors.  Transactions with related parties are 

conducted at prices based on market prices or at contractually agreed prices where no market prices exist.  

The pricing policies for particular types of transactions are explained further below:
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Sale of finished goods Agreed prices which approximate market prices

Purchase of raw materials Agreed prices which approximate market prices

Purchase of services Contractual prices

Purchase and sale of property, plant and equipment Contractual prices

Purchase and sale of investments Contractual prices

Interest income and expense Rate as mutually agreed by shareholders with reference interest 

 rates quoted by domestic commercial banks



As at 31 December balances with related parties are as follows:
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Interest expense 2.83 50.00 356.91 106.27
Overhead costs 235.86 231.12 - -
Directors’ remuneration 248.38 154.77 218.04 112.51
Loss on sales of investment - 410.79 - -
Other expenses 141.74 273.06 - -
Others       
Sales of investments 1,108.98 247.78 - -
Sales of land 474.83 - - -
Sales of plant and equipment 52.02 0.56 - -
Consideration paid for business restructuring 9,646.00 - 9,619.91 -
Purchases of investments - 1,766.61 - -
Purchases of land 491.35 1,260.37 - 275.05
Purchases of equipment and others 17.36 - 27.85 83.49

Trade accounts receivable (being part of trade

   accounts receivable in the balance sheet)       
Sukothai Marketing Co., Ltd. - 373.40 - -
UWD Marketing Co., Ltd. 34.15 42.50 - -
Pisetkij Co., Ltd. 6.49 23.58 - -
P.S. Recycle Co., Ltd. 8.83 0.96 - -
Others 1.80 10.53 - -
Total trade accounts receivable 51.27 450.97 - -

Assets
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Short-term loans to and amounts due from related parties
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The Company

Subsidiaries            
Beer Thai (1991) PCL - - - - - - 4,693.50 65.20 4,758.70 13.20 17.17 30.37
Beer Thip Brewery  (1991) Co., Ltd - - - - - - - 67.31 67.31 - 24.62 24.62
Sangsom Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 97.29 97.29 - 11.95 11.95
Fuengfuanant Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 15.26 15.26 - 1.54 1.54
Thanapakdi Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 5.19 5.19 104.60 0.50 105.10
Mongkolsamai Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 3.73 3.73 96.00 0.39 96.39
Kanchanasingkorn Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 1,036.00 10.87 1,046.87 1,219.50 1.99 1,221.49
Sura Bangyikhan Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 2,261.80 20.83 2,282.63 3,262.00 8.86 3,270.86
Athimart Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 14.74 14.74 13.70 2.18 15.88
S.S. Karnsura Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 14.41 14.41 - 2.05 2.05
Kankwan Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 666.10 18.83 684.93 2,040.50 3.15 2,043.65
Theparunothai Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 12.80 12.80 - 1.62 1.62
United Winery and Distillery Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 9.04 9.04 - 1.11 1.11
Red Bull Distillery (1988) Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 2,565.80 16.16 2,581.96 5,103.00 2.51 5,105.51
Simathurakij Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 220.00 2.59 222.59 1,019.00 2.04 1,021.04
Nateechai Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 575.00 13.87 588.87 1,328.20 1.12 1,329.32
Luckchai Liquor Trading Co., Ltd - - - - - - 975.40 4.80 980.20 119.00 0.72 119.72
Thai Alcohol PCL - - - - - - 60.00 2.53 62.53 125.00 0.56 125.56
Thipchalothron Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 130.70 130.70 - 73.22 73.22
Krittayabun Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 132.09 132.09 - 89.31 89.31
Surathip Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 119.79 119.79 - 17.06 17.06
Sunthronpirom Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 30.14 30.14 - 13.10 13.10
Piromsurang Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 28.31 28.31 - 7.61 7.61
Num Yuk Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 84.24 84.24 - 10.52 10.52
Num Thurakij Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 44.04 44.04 - 4.29 4.29
Num Muang Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 65.02 65.02 188.90 6.74 195.64
Num Nakorn Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 34.01 34.01 120.00 3.06 123.06
Num Palang Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 55.60 55.60 150.50 5.47 155.97
Num Kijjakarn Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 119.29 119.29 138.00 11.66 149.66
Pomthip Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 11.06 11.06 - 9.91 9.91
Pomkit Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 15.96 15.96 - 16.60 16.60
Pomkung Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 9.98 9.98 - 6.56 6.56
Pomchok Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 10.74 10.74 - 8.26 8.26
Pomcharoen Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 5.85 5.85 - 4.41 4.41
Pomburapra Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 7.80 7.80 - 6.09 6.09

20052005

Short-term
loans from

Amounts
due to Total

Short-term
loans from
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due to Total
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due to Total

20042004
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Short-term loans to and amounts due from related parties (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)            
Bionic Humus Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 17.00 0.05 17.05 3.50 - 3.50
Maharas Agri Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 3.80  0.02 3.82 4.80 - 4.80
Thai Molasses Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - - - 75.00 0.02 75.02
Sahatipkarnkonsong Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 120.00 - 120.00 186.00 - 186.00
Dhospaak Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 185.50  0.02 185.52 85.50 - 85.50
Bangna Logistic Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 310.00 1.32 311.32 - - -
Thai Beverage Marketing Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 50.00 0.21 50.21 - - -
Total Subsidiaries - - - - - - 13,739.90 1,301.69 15,041.59 15,395.90 377.97 15,773.87

Related companies            
T.C.C. Group’s Management Co.,Ltd. - - - 247.78 0.08 247.86 - - - - - -
Wattanapat Trading  Co., Ltd. - - - 129.51 0.31 129.82 - - - - - -
Plastic Agachon Co., Ltd. 40.85 3.10 43.95 40.40 0.51 40.91 - - - - - -
LSPV Co., Ltd. - - - - 4,035.85 4,035.85 - - - - - -
LSPV (2001) Co., Ltd. - - - - 1,021.53 1,021.53 - - - - - -
The Suphanburi Sugar Industry Co., Ltd. - 10.50 10.50 - - - - - - - - -
The Chonburi Sugar Corp. Ltd. - 7.93  7.93 - - - - - - - - -
The Mae Wang Sugar Industry Co., Ltd. - 3.86  3.86 - - - - - - - - -
Uttaradit Sugar Industry Co., Ltd. - 7.03 7.03 - - - - - - - - -
Surasate (2005) Co., Ltd.

(Formerly: Thai Molasses (2004) Co., Ltd.) - 38.50 38.50 - 38.50 38.50 - - - - - -
Padermchai Co., Ltd. - 21.75 21.75 - 21.76 21.76 - - - - - -
T.C.C. Argo Co., Ltd. -  3.25 3.25 - - - - - - - - -
Pisetkij Co., Ltd. - 1.22 1.22 - 8.02 8.02 - - - - - -
Others - 4.95 4.95 - 9.39 9.39 - - - - - -
Total related companies 40.85 102.09 142.94 417.69 5,135.95 5,553.64 - - - - - -
Grand Total 40.85 102.09 142.94 417.69 5,135.95 5,553.64 13,739.90 1,301.69 15,041.59 15,395.90 377.97 15,773.87
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The movements of short-term loans to related parties during the years are as follows:

Short-term loans to related parties        
Balance at 1 January  417.69   670.68   15,395.90   2,100.00
Increase during the year  6,483.15   1,351.73   15,588.28   28,173.10
Decrease during the year  (6,859.99)   (1,604.72)   (17,244.28)   (14,877.20)
Balance at 31 December  40.85   417.69   13,739.90   15,395.90

Trade accounts payable (being part of trade accounts

   payable in the balance sheet)       
Berli Jucker Plc.  273.74   507.08   -   -
Thai Beverage Can Ltd.  97.00   74.25   -   -
Pisetkij Co., Ltd.  58.78   33.58   -   -
Plastic Agachon Co., Ltd.  -   3.09   -   -
P.S. Recycle Co., Ltd.  75.98   42.25   -   -
Inverhouse Distillers Co., Ltd.  11.15   -   -   -
Bang-Na Glass Co., Ltd.  4.37   25.56   -   -
Others  0.32   1.89   -   -
Total trade accounts payable  521.34   687.70   -   -

Liabilities
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Short-term loans from and amounts due to related parties

Subsidiaries            
Beer Thip Brewery  (1991) Co., Ltd - - - - - - 990.00 3.08 993.08 393.50 0.22 393.72
Sangsom Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 2,263.00 9.05 2,272.05 1,150.00 1.11 1,151.11
Fuengfuanant Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 140.00 0.55 140.55 346.20 0.28 346.48
Thanapakdi Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 20.00 0.03 20.03 - - -
Mongkolsamai Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 135.00 0.57 135.57 - 0.01 0.01
Athimart Co., Ltd - - - - - - 180.00 0.71 180.71 - - -
S.S. Karnsura Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 329.60 1.40 331.00 323.60 0.20 323.80
Theparunothai Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 311.00 0.95 311.95 272.00 0.18 272.18
United Winery and Distillery Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 212.00 0.90 212.90 155.00 0.26 155.26
Thipchalothron Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 686.00 2.36 688.36 649.50 0.81 650.31
Krittayabun Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 710.00 3.03 713.03 781.00 1.27 782.27
Surathip Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 916.00 3.56  919.56 468.00 1.14 469.14
Sunthronpirom Co., Ltd - - - - - - 1,053.80 4.23 1,058.03 1,185.00 3.00 1,188.00
Piromsurang Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 795.00 3.19 798.19 768.00 1.96 769.96
Num Yuk Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 352.00 0.37 352.37 300.80 0.44 301.24
Num Thurakij Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 284.00 0.74 284.74 - - -
Num Muang Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 530.60 1.19 531.79 - - -
Num Nakorn Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 171.50  0.41 171.91 - - -
Num Palang Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 236.00 0.54 236.54 - - -
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Short-term loans from and amounts due to related parties (continued)
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Subsidiaries (continued)            
Num Kijjakarn Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 1,211.10 4.30 1,215.40 - - -
Thai Molasses Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 60.00 0.07 60.07 - - -
Thai Cooperage Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 9.50 0.04 9.54 - - -
Cosmos Brewery (Thailand) Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 2,050.00 7.08 2,057.08 - - -
Pomthip Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 388.00 1.35 389.35 80.00 0.14 80.14
Pomkit Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 255.00  0.46 255.46 67.80 0.10 67.90
Pomkung Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 205.00 0.63 205.63 65.00 0.12 65.12
Pomchok Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 567.20 2.15 569.35 316.30 0.73 317.03
Pomcharoen Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 20.00  0.01 20.01 28.00 0.04 28.04
Pomburapra Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 281.30 0.83 282.13 144.50 0.31 144.81
Chang Beer Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 128.00  0.49 128.49 - - -
Pan International (Thailand)  Co., Ltd. - - - - - -  50.00  0.27 50.27 50.00 0.88 50.88
Dhospaak Co., Ltd. - - - - - - - 6.22 6.22 - - -
Thai Beverage Marketing Co., Ltd.

(formerly: Thai Beverages Marketing Co., Ltd.) - - - - - - - - - 140.00 0.19 140.19
Total Subsidiaries - - - - - - 15,540.60 60.76 15,601.36 7,684.20 13.39 7,697.59

Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited
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Short-term loans from and amounts due to related parties (continued)

Related companies            
T.C.C. Technology Co., Ltd. - 6.17 6.17 - 5.15 5.15 - 0.34 0.34 - 0.35 0.35
Southeast Capital Co., Ltd.            
(formerly T.C.C. Car rent Co., Ltd.) - 13.32 13.32 - 6.93 6.93 - 2.60 2.60 - 1.69 1.69
Wattanapat Trading Co., Ltd. - - - - 192.60 192.60 - - - - - -
T.C.C.Property Development Co., Ltd. - 6.38 6.38 - - - - 6.38 6.38 - - -
Ms. Wantanee Chevasiri - - - 100.00 0.25 100.25 - - - - - -
Red Bull Brewery (1991) Co., Ltd. - - - 178.96 0.04 179.00 - - - - - -
Inverhouse Distillers Co., Ltd. - 3.91 3.91 - - - - - - - - -
T.C.C.Holding Co., Ltd. - - - - 58.21 58.21 - - - - - -
P.S. Recycle Co., Ltd. - - - - 5.07 5.07 - - - - - -
Thai Charoen Insurance Co., Ltd. - 6.24 6.24 - 12.08 12.08 - - - - - -
Others - 2.32 2.32 - 2.85 2.85 - 0.30 0.30 - - -
Total related companies - 38.34 38.34 278.96 283.18 562.14 - 9.62 9.62 - 2.04 2.04
Grand Total - 38.34 38.34 278.96 283.18 562.14 15,540.60 70.38 15,610.98 7,684.20 15.43 7,699.63
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The movements of short-term loans from related parties during the years are as follows:
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5  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  22.44   17.76   0.02   0.02
Cash at banks  3,229.02   868.24   18.54   17.75
Total  3,251.46   886.00   18.56   17.77
Less Deposit pledged as collateral  (0.81)   -   -   -
Cash and cash equivalents  3,250.65   886.00   18.56   17.77

Trade accounts receivable  352.05   394.66   -   -
Trade accounts receivable - related parties  51.27   450.97   -   -
Total  403.32   845.63   -   -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts  (2.72)   (4.98)   -   -
Trade accounts receivable, net  400.60   840.65   -   -

 The Company

2005 20042005 2004

(in million Baht)

Short-term loans from related parties       
Balance at 1 January  278.96   1,396.90   7,684.20   -
Increase during the year  25.18   709.46   22,795.80   22,388.30
Decrease during the year  (304.14)   (1,827.40)   (14,939.40)   (14,704.10)
Balance at 31 December  -   278.96   15,540.60   7,684.20

6   Trade accounts receivable

Consolidated
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Within credit terms  320.95   4.11   -   -
Overdue:       
   Less than and up to 3 months  33.58   430.16   -   -
   Over 3 months and up to 6 months  8.47   9.29   -   -
   Over 6 months and up to 12 months  25.89   78.49   -   -
   Over 12 months  14.43   323.58   -   -
Total  403.32   845.63   -   -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts  (2.72)   (4.98)   -   -
Trade accounts receivable, net  400.60   840.65   -   -

The normal credit term granted by the Group is 7 - 30 days.

As at 31 December, trade accounts receivable classified by aging are as follows:

7   Inventories

Finished goods  16,066.58   20,203.01   -   -
Maturing spirits  4,547.04   4,228.78   -   -
Work in progress  3,240.25   3,796.36   -   -
Raw materials  909.92   977.43   -   -
Packaging materialsÿ  443.82   659.83   -   -
Spare parts  539.19   642.20   -   -
Others  287.88   230.31   -   -
Total  26,034.68   30,737.92   -   -
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8   Other current assets

Prepaid excise tax  1,553.55   1,971.91   -   -
Refundable excise tax  168.35   199.11   -   -
Refundable VAT   260.80   515.79   8.06   -
Prepaid property tax  148.45   161.90   -   -
Withholding tax  43.32   35.68   -   -
Prepaid income tax  33.63   0.45   -   -
Deposits  103.94   234.69   0.09   0.01
Prepaid expenses  120.21   116.76   0.75   0.21
Advanced payments for construction  73.81   123.28   -   -
Advanced payments  44.23   20.07   -   -
Other receivables  10.54   153.54   -   -
Others  12.96   17.16   0.66   0.01
Total  2,573.79   3,550.34   9.56   0.23
Less allowance for doubtful accounts  (14.02)   (22.32)   -   -
Other current assets, net  2,559.77   3,528.02   9.56   0.23

The Company

2005 20042005 2004

(in million Baht)

Consolidated
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 The Company

9  Investments accounted for using the equity method

Cost method

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Dividend incomeEquity methodPaid-up capital Ownership interest

(in million Baht) (in million Baht) (in million Baht)(in million Baht)(%)

Direct subsidiaries          
Beer Thai (1991) PCL 5,550.00 5,550.00 100.00 100.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 8,944.94 8,627.04 666.00 -
Beer Thip Brewery (1991) Co., Ltd. 6,600.00 6,600.00 100.00 100.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 8,894.18 8,356.59 660.00 330.00
Cosmos Brewery (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 1,666.67 1,666.67 100.00 - 5,150.00 - 3,308.38 - - -
Thai Alcohol PCL 800.00 800.00 100.00 100.00 1,665.60 1,665.60 2,333.72 2,223.91 80.00 52.80
Sangsom Co., Ltd. 7,500.00 7,500.00 100.00 100.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 11,473.56 10,677.05 562.50 -
Red Bull Distillery (1988) Co., Ltd. 3,000.00 3,000.00 100.00 100.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,478.71 3,520.42 30.00 -
United Winery and Distillery Co., Ltd. 1,800.00 1,800.00 100.00 100.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 2,025.71 1,958.30  21.60 -
Sura Bangyikhan Co., Ltd. 4,000.00 4,000.00 100.00 100.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 5,952.10 5,983.92  80.00 -
Fuengfuanant Co., Ltd. 900.00 900.00 100.00 100.00 900.00 900.00 1,301.14 1,268.55 112.50 67.50
Athimart Co., Ltd. 900.00 900.00 100.00 100.00 900.00 900.00 1,258.97 1,226.62 135.00 90.00
S.S. Karnsura Co., Ltd. 800.00 800.00 100.00 100.00 800.00 800.00 1,259.23 1,200.91 120.00 120.00
Kankwan Co., Ltd. 800.00 800.00 100.00 100.00 800.00 800.00 1,150.26 1,130.98 160.00 -
Theparunothai Co., Ltd. 700.00 700.00 100.00 100.00 700.00 700.00 1,017.71 1,000.03 105.00 17.50
Thanapakdi Co., Ltd. 700.00 700.00 100.00 100.00 700.00 700.00 834.72 788.71 - 17.50
Mongkolsamai Co., Ltd. 700.00 700.00 100.00 100.00 700.00 700.00 843.81 813.32 - -
Simathurakij Co., Ltd. 900.00 900.00 100.00 100.00 900.00 900.00 1,134.23 1,158.52 54.00 90.00

Investments accounted for using the equity method in the Company’s balance sheets as at 31 December, consisted of:

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
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Direct subsidiaries (continued)          
Kanchanasingkorn Co., Ltd. 700.00 700.00 100.00 100.00 700.00 700.00 973.97 976.83 52.50 17.50
Luckchai Liquor Trading Co., Ltd. 800.00 800.00 100.00 100.00 800.00 800.00 1,386.02 1,396.20 40.00 20.00
Nateechai Co., Ltd. 800.00 800.00 100.00 100.00 800.00 800.00 1,171.43 1,244.29 100.00 20.00
Thipchalothron Co., Ltd. 1.00 1.00 100.00 100.00 2.59 2.59 345.36 287.78 149.99 14.40
Krittayabun Co., Ltd. 5.00 5.00 100.00 100.00 26.65 26.65 229.73 106.35 55.00 25.00
Surathip Co., Ltd. 1.20 1.20 100.00 100.00 6.84 6.84 630.62 292.20 191.90 -
Sunthronpirom Co., Ltd. 5.00 5.00 100.00 100.00 24.75 24.75 892.94 730.00 400.00 15.00
Piromsurang Co., Ltd. 5.00 5.00 100.00 100.00 23.80 23.80 690.79 530.80 300.00 17.00
T.C.C. Cosmo Corporation Ltd. 5.00 5.00 100.00 - 38.95 - 6.07 - - -
Pomthip Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 143.36 146.14 70.00 1.70
Pomkit Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 40.10 249.07 130.00 -
Pomkung Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 96.32 118.47 50.00 -
Pomchok Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 224.82 236.70 100.00 33.40
Pomcharoen Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 7.96 57.40 25.00 -
Pomburapra Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 158.90 165.08 60.00 -
Num Yuk Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 671.04 442.58 200.00 37.75
Num Kijjakarn Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 1,102.28 436.68 200.00 36.75
Num Palang Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 387.43 161.19 30.00 -
Num Muang Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 498.89 154.88 50.00 3.75
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Direct subsidiaries (continued)          
Num Nakorn Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 202.45 41.39 20.00 -
Num Thurakij Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 10.00 10.00 390.48 150.84 60.00 4.25
Beer Chang Co., Ltd. 1.00 1.00 100.00 - 4,301.04 - 166.87 - - -
Archa beer Co., Ltd. 1.00 1.00 100.00 - 129.92 - 4.95 - - -
Maharas Agri Co., Ltd. 2.00 2.00 100.00 100.00 2.00 2.00 - - - -
Pan International (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 1.00 1.00 100.00 100.00 53.62 53.62 59.28 60.69 21.98 21.00
Additive Food Co., Ltd. 1.00 1.00 100.00 100.00 38.11 38.11 31.04 23.11 6.00 9.50
Charun Business 52 Co., Ltd. 121.80 121.80 100.00 100.00 84.53 84.53 102.27 99.20 - -
Bionic Humus Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 100.00 100.00 14.36 14.36 12.76 20.35 3.50 2.38
Thai Molasses Co., Ltd. 40.00 40.00 99.72 99.72 35.41 35.41 88.35 63.18 47.86 -
Sahatipkarnkonsong Co., Ltd. 12.00 12.00 100.00 100.00 12.00 12.00 60.12 24.66 9.60 -
Thai Cooperage Co., Ltd. 300.00 300.00 100.00 100.00 300.00 300.00 515.10 502.29 - -
Dhanasindhi Co., Ltd. 20.00 20.00 100.00 100.00 23.89 23.89 32.52 23.24 - -
Bang-Na Logistic Co., Ltd. 123.00 123.00 100.00 100.00 134.07 134.07 169.47 184.72 30.75 1.82
Thai Beverage Marketing Co., Ltd.          
(Formerly: Thai Beverages Marketing Co., Ltd.) 300.00 300.00 100.00 100.00 300.00 300.00 840.95 872.66 45.00 -
Dhospaak Co., Ltd. 25.00 25.00 100.00 100.00 61.50 61.50 15.10 27.44 - -
International Beverage Holdings Limited 535.10 0.05 100.00 100.00 535.10 0.05 484.27 - - -
Total     63,084.73 52,929.77 68,045.38 59,761.28 5,235.68 1,066.50
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10   Other long-term investments

The Company

2005 2004

(in million Baht)

Balance at 1 January        59,761.28   50,567.94
Purchase of investments (including consideration paid for business restructuring)      10,154.96   3.82
Dividend received from subsidiaries        (5,235.68)   (1,066.50)
Adjustment of difference arising from business restructuring (Note 1)       (6,326.65)   -
Surplus on revaluation of assets of subsidiaries (Note 18)        (114.48)   111.78
Excess of share of loss on investments        (0.93)   (54.35)
Unrealised gains (losses) on investment in securities of subsidiary       (0.08)   0.03
Currency translation reserve        (5.34)   -
Share of profits from investments accounted for using the equity method      9,812.30   10,198.56
Balance at 31 December        68,045.38   59,761.28

The Company

Available-for-sale equity securities  -   0.08   -   -
Non-marketable equity securitie  5.59   1,116.39   -   -
Total  5.59   1,116.47   -   -
Less allowance for decline in value of investments  (4.32)   (5.79)   -   -
Other long-term investments, net  1.27   1,110.68   -   -

In 2005, 3 subsidiaries sold their investments in non-marketable equity securities with total cost of Baht 1,108.06 million receiving profit

from the sales of Baht 0.92 million.

Consolidated

Movements of investments in subsidiaries during the years are as follows:
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As at 31 December 2004 the carrying amount of idle land, which is held for planned future business operations

amounted to Baht 1,377.87 million.

The movements of property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land - cost 6,707.37 1,265.63 (135.85) - 7,837.15 - - - - - 6,707.37 7,837.15
      - Surplus on revaluation of land 6,453.34 438.32 (191.94) - 6,699.72 - - - - - 6,453.34 6,699.72
Total land 13,160.71 1,703.95 (327.79) - 14,536.87 - - - - - 13,160.71 14,536.87
Land improvement 660.03 1.88 (0.10) 57.39 719.20 112.24 43.57 (0.05) - 155.76 547.79 563.44
Buildings & improvements 13,873.00 30.80 (31.41) 104.30 13,976.69 3,527.71 669.33 (3.51) (7.92) 4,185.61 10,345.29 9,791.08
Machinery and equipment 32,767.90 183.19 (103.67) 297.55 33,144.97 13,220.27 2,957.33 (50.24) 7.93 16,135.29 19,547.63 17,009.68
Oak barrels 2,420.44 8.69 (0.47) - 2,428.66 838.78 134.51 - - 973.29 1,581.66 1,455.37
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 388.16 66.68 (10.97) 2.25 446.12 227.18 52.39 (8.29) (0.01) 271.27 160.98 174.85
Vehicles  2,784.05 106.77 (197.53) 4.79 2,698.08 1,478.43 389.85 (109.38) - 1,758.90 1,305.62 939.18
Construction in progress 543.46 1,407.21 (4.67) (466.28) 1,479.72 - - - - - 543.46 1,479.72
Total 66,597.75 3,509.17 (676.61) - 69,430.31 19,404.61 4,246.98 (171.47) - 23,480.12 47,193.14 45,950.19

11  Property, plant and equipment

The movements of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land - cost 7,837.15 560.54 (474.74) - 7,922.95 - - - - - 7,837.15 7,922.95
      - Surplus on revaluation of land 6,699.72 20.35 (134.83) - 6,585.24 - - - - - 6,699.72 6,585.24
Total land 14,536.87 580.89 (609.57) - 14,508.19 - - - - - 14,536.87 14,508.19
Land improvement 719.20 0.06 - 0.83 720.09 155.76 45.40 - - 201.16 563.44 518.93
Buildings & improvements 13,976.69 18.89 (44.04) 150.68 14,102.22 4,185.61 672.34 (5.69) - 4,852.26 9,791.08 9,249.96
Machinery and equipment 33,144.97 87.14 (38.19) 538.77 33,732.69 16,135.29 2,963.30 (25.51) 18.94 19,092.02 17,009.68 14,640.67
Oak barrels 2,428.66 0.36 - - 2,429.02 973.29 116.35 (0.01) - 1,089.63 1,455.37 1,339.39
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 446.12 74.12 (11.67) 51.22 559.79 271.27 64.83 (8.31) (15.43) 312.36 174.85 247.43
Vehicles  2,698.08 50.77 (30.88) (2.46) 2,715.51 1,758.90 359.76 (21.96) (3.51) 2,093.19 939.18 622.32
Construction in progress 1,479.72 6,428.26 (0.88) (739.04) 7,168.06 - - - - - 1,479.72 7,168.06
Total 69,430.31 7,240.49 (735.23) - 75,935.57 23,480.12 4,221.98 (61.48) - 27,640.62 45,950.19 48,294.95

Beginning Addition Disposal Transfer Ending Beginning Addition Disposal Transfer Ending Beginning Ending

Net book valueCost/valuation Accumulated depreciation

(in million Baht)

Consolidated 2005

Beginning Addition Disposal Transfer Ending Beginning Addition Disposal Transfer Ending Beginning Ending

(in million Baht)

Net book valueCost/valuation Accumulated depreciation

Consolidated 2004
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As at 31 December 2005 the historical cost of fully depreciated plant and equipment, which were still in use amounted to Baht 2,253.62 million.

As at 31 December 2005 the net book value of property, plant and equipment of certain subsidiary companies, used as security under the Negative 

     Pledge agreement, as disclosed in Note 14, totaled Baht 31,658.05 million.

As at 31 December 2005 the carrying amount of idle land, which is held for planned future business operations amounted to Baht 1,735.21 million.
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The movements of property, plant and equipment (Continued)

In 2005 and 2004, the Company and subsidiaries recognized a revaluation of land as disclosed in Note 18.

Depreciation of plant and equipment for the years ended 31 December, consisted of:

Land - cost 410.90 - - 410.90 - - - - 410.90 410.90
      - Surplus on revaluation of land 134.52 - - 134.52 - - - - 134.52 134.52
Total land 545.42 - - 545.42 - - - - 545.42 545.42
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4.65 63.06 - 67.71 0.28 5.00 - 5.28 4.37 62.43
Vehicles - 24.18 - 24.18 - 1.62 - 1.62 - 22.56
Construction in progress 121.90 - (0.98) 120.92 - - - - 121.90 120.92
Total 671.97 87.24 (0.98) 758.23 0.28 6.62 - 6.90 671.69 751.33

Land - cost - 410.90 - 410.90 - - - - - 410.90
      - Surplus on revaluation of land - 134.52 - 134.52 - - - - - 134.52
Total land - 545.42 - 545.42 - - - - - 545.42
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 0.11 4.54 - 4.65 - 0.28 - 0.28 0.11 4.37
Construction in progress - 121.90 - 121.90 - - - - - 121.90
Total 0.11 671.86 - 671.97 - 0.28 - 0.28 0.11 671.69

The Company

2005 20042005 2004

(in million Baht)

Included in cost of production  2,315.71   2,821.59   -   -
Included in selling and administrative expenses  1,906.27   1,425.39   6.62   0.28
Total  4,221.98   4,246.98   6.62   0.28

Consolidated

The Company

(in million Baht)

Interest expense  82.71   -   -   -

Consolidated

Borrowing costs for the years ended 31 December capitalised as part of asset cost, consisted of:

Beginning Addition Disposal Ending Beginning Depreciation Disposal Ending Beginning Ending

(in million Baht)

Net book valueCost/valuation Accumulated depreciation

The Company 2005

Beginning Addition Disposal Ending Beginning Depreciation Disposal Ending Beginning Ending

(in million Baht)

Net book valueCost/valuation Accumulated depreciation

The Company 2004

2005 20042005 2004
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12  Intangible assets

The movements of intangible assets are as follows:

The movements of intangible assets (Continued)

Trademark 304.86 1.82 - 306.68 158.01 24.67 - 182.68 146.85 124.00
Leasehold 1.04 0.12 - 1.16 0.13 0.18 - 0.31 0.91 0.85
Computer software 4.28 11.68 - 15.96 0.58 1.57 - 2.15 3.70 13.81
Broadcasting rights  101.96 59.93 - 161.89 19.83 18.53 - 38.36 82.13 123.53
Total 412.14 73.55 - 485.69 178.55 44.95 - 223.50 233.59 262.19

Computer software 1.36 8.20 - 9.56 0.07 1.22 - 1.29 1.29 8.27
Total 1.36 8.20 - 9.56 0.07 1.22 - 1.29 1.29 8.27

Computer software - 1.36 - 1.36 - 0.07 - 0.07 - 1.29
Total - 1.36 - 1.36 - 0.07 - 0.07 - 1.29

Trademark 303.51 1.35 - 304.86 133.53 24.48 - 158.01 169.98 146.85
Leasehold - 1.04 - 1.04 - 0.13 - 0.13 - 0.91
Computer software 2.88 1.40 - 4.28 0.18 0.40 - 0.58 2.70 3.70
Broadcasting rights  72.10 29.86 - 101.96 14.23 5.60 - 19.83 57.87 82.13
Total 378.49 33.65 - 412.14 147.94 30.61 - 178.55 230.55 233.59

Annual Report 2005

Beginning Addition Disposal Ending Beginning Depreciation Disposal Ending Beginning Ending

(in million Baht)

Net book valueCost Accumulated amortisation

Consolidated 2005

Beginning Addition Disposal Ending Beginning Depreciation Disposal Ending Beginning Ending

(in million Baht)

Net book valueCost Accumulated amortisation

Consolidated 2004

Beginning Addition Disposal Ending Beginning Depreciation Disposal Ending Beginning Ending

(in million Baht)

Net book valueCost Accumulated amortisation

The Company 2004

Beginning Addition Disposal Ending Beginning Depreciation Disposal Ending Beginning Ending

(in million Baht)

Net book valueCost Accumulated amortisation

The Company 2005



The Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

(in million Baht)

Bottles, crates and pallets  174.69   159.50   -   -
Deposits    67.29   67.74   -   -
Others    18.60   59.45   0.07   -
Total  260.58   286.69   0.07   -
Less Allowance for impairment of assets  (6.25)   (7.45)   -   -
Other non-current assets, net  254.33   279.24   0.07   -

Consolidated

Current       
Bank overdrafts       
-   Secured  -   0.14   -   -  
-   Guaranteed  0.15   125.27   -  
-   Unsecured  -   224.74   -   28.57
  0.15   350.15   -   28.57
Short-term loans from financial institutions       
-   Secured  2,700.00   3,300.00   -   -
-   Guaranteed / negative pledge  36,600.00   38,100.00   36,600.00   38,100.00
-   Unsecured  -   2,970.00   -   -
  39,300.00   44,370.00   36,600.00   38,100.00
Current portion of long-term loan       
-   Secured  1,086.60   1,320.00   -   -
  1,086.60   1,320.00   -   -
  40,386.75   46,040.15   36,600.00   38,128.57
Non current       
Long-term loan       
-   Secured  -   1,086.60   -   -
  -   1,086.60   -   -
Total  40,386.75   47,126.75   36,600.00   38,128.57

The Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

(in million Baht)

Consolidated

13  Other non-current assets

14   Borrowings
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(%)

Bank overdrafts  7.00   7.00   5.50 - 7.75   6.12
Short-term loans from financial institutions  3.75 - 5.00   4.74   2.35 - 3.50   3.13
Long-term loan and current portion  5.00   5.00   4.00   4.00

2005

Range Weighted Range Weighted

2004

As at 31 December, the interest rate exposure of the borrowings is as follows:

The principal features of the borrowings are as follows:

(a)   Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand.  As at 31 December 2005, the Group has a total overdraft facility of Baht 2,533 million (2004: Baht 

2,535 million) which is partially guaranteed by five subsidiary companies and a related company.

 

(b)   Short-term loans from financial institutions primarily comprise promissory notes issued by the Company to several domestic commercial 

banks totaling Baht 36,600 million as at 31 December 2005 (2004: Baht 38,100 million) with interest payable monthly.  These loans are            

guaranteed by certain subsidiaries consisting of Sangsom Co., Ltd.; Sura Bangyikhan Co., Ltd.; Beer Thai (1991) PCL.; and Beer Thip Brewery (1991) 

Co., Ltd.

In addition, 17 subsidiary companies entered into a Negative Pledge agreement, whereby these subsidiaries agree not to sell, transfer, mortgage, 

pledge, encumber or grant any preferential right in relation to their land, buildings, plant and machinery, during any period that the Company 

has not yet repaid these loans and/or is still liable to the banks under these promissory notes, unless written consent from the banks is received.  

These subsidiaries are Sangsom Co., Ltd., Sura Bangyikhan Co., Ltd., United Winery and Distillery Co., Ltd., Red Bull Distillery (1988) Co., Ltd., 

Fuengfuanant Co., Ltd., Athimart Co., Ltd., S.S. Karnsura Co., Ltd., Kankwan Co., Ltd., Theparunothai Co., Ltd., Thanapakdi Co., Ltd., Simathurakij 

Co., Ltd., Mongkolsamai Co., Ltd., Kanchanasingkorn Co., Ltd., Luckchai Liquor Trading Co., Ltd., Nateechai Co., Ltd., Beer Thai (1991) PCL. and Beer 

Thip Brewery (1991) Co., Ltd.  As at 31 December 2005 the net book value of assets used as security under the Negative Pledge are disclosed in 

Note 11.

The remaining short-term loans from financial institutions are guaranteed by certain subsidiary companies and are secured certain inventories of 

subsidiary companies.  As at 31 December 2005 the carrying amount of inventories that have been pledged as security is disclosed in Note 7.

(c)   Long-term loan and its current portion in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 was obtained from a domestic 

commercial bank by a subsidiary and is to be repaid monthly in 23 installments, Baht 110 million for the first 22 installments and Baht 96.60 

million for the last installment, which commenced in December 2004.  Interest is payable monthly at a fixed rate of 4% per annum for the first 

year and MLR minus 1.75% per annum afterwards.  This loan is secured by certain inventories of subsidiary companies.  As at 31 December 2005 

the carrying amount of those inventories is disclosed in Note 7.
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15  Other current liabilities

16   Share capital and appropriation of earnings

Share capital

2004

Par Value Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

(in million Share)(in Baht) (in million Share)(in million Baht) (in million Baht)

Authorised share capital     
Balance at 1 January    
- Ordinary shares 1 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000
Increase in authorised share capital      
- Ordinary shares 1 7,000 7,000 - -
Balance at 31 December     
- Ordinary shares 1 29,000 29,000 22,000 22,000
     
Issued and paid-up share capital     
Balance at 1 January     
- Ordinary shares 1 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000
Movements during the years  - - - -
Balance at 31 December     
- Ordinary shares 1 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000

Outstanding cheque paid for excise tax 918.68 - - -
Value added tax payable 723.24 563.24 81.61 15.00
Withholding tax payable 72.80 75.87 23.20 18.67
Advanced payments from customers for purchase of goods 1,879.05 1,669.65 - -
Accrued expenses 364.52 488.75 53.92 -
Accrued interest expense 15.13 15.12 14.13 11.84
Deposits and retention payable 318.74 63.44 0.43 -
Construction payable 596.98 178.51 11.78 -
Accrued promotion expense 230.41 8.39  - -
Others 85.43 124.01 1.68 21.62
Total 5,204.98 3,186.98 186.75 67.13

2005

Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited

The Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

(in million Baht)

Consolidated
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The Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders of the Company No. 1/2005 held on 8 July 2005 unanimously approved to increase the 

authorised share capital of the Company from Baht 22,000 million to Baht 29,000 million through the issue of 7,000 million 

ordinary shares with a Baht 1 par value.  Of this increase, an amount not exceeding 6,000 million shares will be allocated to the 

public and an amount not exceeding 1,000 million shares will be available as a “Greenshoe Option”.

The Company registered the increase of its authorised share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 11 July 2005.

Appropriation of retained earnings

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on 27 April 2005 unanimously approved the appropriation of Baht 597.5 million 

from earnings to the legal reserve and the payment of dividends at Baht 0.12 per share, totaling Baht 2,640 million.  Subsequently, 

the Company additionally appropriated Baht 510 million from its earnings to the legal reserve. 

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on 29 May 2004 unanimously approved the appropriation of Baht 2.5 million 

from earnings to the legal reserve.

 
17  Reserves

Currency translation reserve

Currency translation reserve consisted of foreign exchange differences arising from translation of the financial statements of 

foreign operations to Thai Baht.

Fair value and revaluation reserves
Revaluation reserve

In 2004 a revaluation of land was carried out by independent professional valuers on an open market basis further to those 

conducted in 2003 resulting in a further surplus of Baht 438.32 million being recognised, of which Baht 0.08 million was not 

attributable to the Company.

Subsequently, an updated appraisal value as at 31 December 2003 was produced by the independent professional valuers on 22 

September 2005. As a result of the updated appraisal, a reduction in the surplus of Baht 191.94 million was recognised in the 2004 

financial statements and a reduction of Baht 134.83 million was recognised in the 2005 financial statements.

In addition, in 2005, a subsidiary company obtained a revaluation of its land from independent professional valuers and a surplus 

of Baht 20.35 million was recognised in the 2005 financial statements.

Fair value reserve

Fair value and revaluation reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale equity securities.

Legal reserve

Legal reserve is set up under the provisions of Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535. Section 116 requires that a 

company shall allocate not less than 5% of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve account 

(“legal reserve”), until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the registered authorised capital. The legal reserve is 

not available for dividend distribution.



18   Net loss and equity not attributable to the Company
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Marketing and advertising expense 4,746.41 4,206.40 84.16 1.03
Employee costs 2,709.74 2,455.18 420.58 171.32
Depreciation and amortisation 464.38 531.01 7.84 0.35
Idle capacity 2,165.00 1,239.59 - -
Vehicle and transportation expenses 773.77 747.97 25.68 6.35
Loss on sales of investments - 410.79 - -
Others 1,657.65 1,524.48 184.37 72.30
Total 12,516.95 11,115.42 722.63 251.35
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19  Selling and administrative expenses

Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited

Net loss not attributable to the Company has arisen from the basis of consolidation adopted and relates to the portion of income and               

expense that was not attributable to the shareholders of the Company through their holding of shares in the Company.  Similarly, equity not                  

attributable to the Company relates to net assets belonging to the businesses transferred, which had not been formally transferred at the end 

of the period.

The Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

(in million Baht)

Consolidated



Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

Weighted average number of issued

 and paid-up common shares 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000

Net profit for the period 10,409.37 9,668.58 10,132.78 10,334.73
Less Net loss not attributable to the Company   - (748.89) -  -
Net profit attributable to common shareholders 10,409.37 10,417.47 10,132.78 10,334.73

Pro forma earnings per share (in Baht) - 0.44 - -
Basic earnings per share (in Baht) 0.47 0.47 0.46 0.47

20   Earnings per share

For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 there were no potential common shares, therefore diluted earnings per share is not presented.
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Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average 

number of issued and paid-up common shares outstanding during the year of 22,000 million shares.

Pro forma earnings per share

The pro forma earnings per share computation is based upon net profit for the year ended 31 December 2004 before deducting the portion not 

attributable to the Company.  The purpose of the pro forma earnings per share computation is to present earnings per share for the year ended 

31 December 2004 as if the businesses transferred to the Company had been transferred at the beginning of 2004.  The computation is based 

upon the same number of shares as basic earnings per share.

The computation is as follows:

Diluted earnings per share

Annual Report 2005
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2005 2004 2005 2004

(in million Baht)

Consolidated

The Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

(in million Shares)

Consolidated
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21  Financial instruments

Financial risk management and policies

The Group is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates and currency exchange rates and from non-performance of 

contractual obligations by counterparties. The Group does not issue derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the Group’s operations and its cash flows because 

loan interest rates are mainly fixed. The Group is primarily exposed to interest rate risk from its borrowings (Note 14). The Group mitigates this risk by 

ensuring that the majority of its borrowings are at fixed interest rates. 

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk relating to purchases and sales which are denominated in foreign currencies.  The Group primarily utilises 

forward exchange contracts with maturities of less than one year to hedge such financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.  The 

forward exchange contracts entered into at the balance sheet date also relate to anticipated purchases and sales, denominated in foreign currencies, 

for the subsequent period.  

The table below provides an indication of the Group’s foreign currency positions as at 31 December, relating to the Group’s exposure and forward 

exchange contracts used to hedge against the exposure as a result of the Group’s policy.
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Financial assets denominated in foreign currencies:       
US Dollar (USD) 0.19 7.84 0.15 5.73
Singapore Dollar (SGD) 0.15 3.57 0.08 1.83
Euro - 0.11 - -
Australian Dollar (AUD) - - 0.01 0.41
Hong Kong Dollar (HKD) - - 0.01 0.05
Total financial assets denominated

     in foreign currencies  11.52  8.02

Financial liabilities denominated

     in foreign currencies:       
US Dollar (USD) 1.28 52.55 0.32 12.65
British Pounds (GBP) 0.59 42.03 0.96 72.33
Euro (EUR) 0.79 38.62 1.25 66.74
Australian Dollar (AUD) 0.24 7.42 0.72 21.96
Denmark Krone (KR) 0.03 0.19 0.01 0.07
Swiss Francs (CHF) 0.01 0.03 - -
Total financial liabilities denominated

     in foreign currencies  140.84  173.75
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Forward exchange contracts to buy foreign

   currencies (mark-to-market value):

Euro (EUR) 20.17 991.86 4.57 243.43
US Dollar (USD) 16.24 667.39 38.92 1,521.20
British Pounds (GBP) 5.41 384.81 1.39 104.26
Australian Dollar (AUD) 3.97 119.55 7.76 228.10
Total forward exchange contracts to buy 

   foreign currencies  2,163.61  2,096.99

Forward exchange contracts to sell foreign        

currencies (mark-to-market value):       
US Dollar (USD) 1.20 49.16 4.63 187.00
Total forward exchange contracts to sell

   foreign currencies  49.16  187.00
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20042005

In foreign currency In Baht In foreign currency In Baht

Consolidated

(million)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to settle its financial and contractual             

obligations to the Group as and when they fall due.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on 

all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.  At the balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.  The 

maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.  However, due to the large 

number of parties comprising the Group’s customer base, Management does not anticipate material losses from its debt collection.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the Group’s 

operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Thai Beverage Publice Company Limited



Thai Beverage Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Formerly: Thai Beverages Public Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

 
Construction contracts          1,330.20 - - 7.17 -
Raw material purchasing agreements (Malt & Hop) - 17.63 4.45 11.58 5.09
Raw material sale agreements 20.84 - - - -
Operating leases agreements for land, buildings

   and equipment 487.06 - - - -
Consulting and supervising service agreement

   for beer production 33.12 - - - -
Advertising and sponsorship agreements         99.56 - - - 0.50
Other service agreements 110.98 - - - -
Bank guarantees          201.47 - - - -
Others - - - 0.27 -

Fair values

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s 

length transaction.  In determining the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities, the Group takes into account its current circumstances 

and the costs that would be incurred to exchange or settle the underlying financial instrument.  As the carrying amounts of financial assets 

and financial liabilities presented in the balance sheets are mostly short-term, the management believes that the fair value of those financial 

assets and financial liabilities does not materially differ from their carrying amounts.

22  Commitments

As at 31 December 2005 commitments of the Group are as follows:

Further to the above, the Group has the following additional commitments:

(a)  A subsidiary of the Company entered into a number of molasses purchasing agreements with various suppliers (including some related 

parties) totalling Baht 1,448.09 million. As at 31 December 2005 the outstanding commitments relating to these agreements totalled Baht 

855.83 million.
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(b)   During 2004, the Company and four subsidiaries entered into production and blending control agreements with a specialist for a period of 

40 years from 1 August 2004 to 1 August 2044.  Under the agreements, the Company and its subsidiaries are obliged to pay monthly service 

fees of Baht 4.3 million which are to be annually increased by 5% for the first 20 years from August 1, 2004 to August 1, 2024.  Afterwards, the 

Company has to pay monthly service fees of Baht 250,000 until the expiration of the agreements.  Service fee under the agreements totaled 

Baht 1,766.20 million.  As at 31 December 2005 the outstanding commitments relating to these agreements was Baht 1,692.03 million.

Subsequently, on 30 December 2005, the Company and the four subsidiaries entered into an addendum to the original agreements described 

above.  The addendum became effective on 1 January 2006 whereby the Company paid Baht 375 million and the four subsidiaries paid a total 

of Baht 1,625 million as consideration to the specialist in January 2006 to exclusively secure his services.  Under the addendum, the Company 

and the four subsidiaries concerned are entitled to seek damages, not exceeding Baht 2,000 million, for any intentional breach that the special-

ist fails to remedy, including non-performance of his contractual duties. 

(c)   During 2005, a subsidiary company renewed a sponsorship agreement with Everton Football Club, in the United Kingdom, for a period of 

three years in order to promote its business globally.  Under the agreement, the subsidiary is obliged to pay a minimum amount of £0.50 million 

and a maximum amount of £2.9 million per year, dependent on the performance of Everton football team in each year.

(d)   A subsidiary company has a commitment to provide sponsorship to the Football Association of Thailand at the rate of 10% of its net profit 

generated by its World Cup 2006 broadcasting project.

23  Litigation 

As at 31 December 2005 the Group was involved in litigation proceedings as follows:

Property tax

Since 2002 up to 2005, a subsidiary’s property tax assessment totaled Baht 161.30 million, recognised as expenses of Baht 13.03 million and 

other current assets of Baht 148.27 million. However, the subsidiary filed an application to the Central Tax Court to withdraw the assessment 

of the property tax (amount recognised as other current assets). During 2004 and 2005, the Central Tax Court ruled that the subsidiary should 

pay additional property taxes amounting to Baht 13.55 million.  These additional taxes have been paid by the subsidiary and recognised as an 

expense.
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The subsidiary has appealed and the case is currently being considered by the Central Tax Court and the Supreme Court. The management of 

the subsidiary and their attorney believe that the likelihood of winning is high.

Health Hazardous Work Permit

In 2002 a subsidiary was ordered by the Administrative Court to be co-defendant with a government officer in a lawsuit whereby one local 

public organisation filed for the government officer to withdraw an order given to the local public organisation to extend the subsidiary’s 

Health Hazardous Work Permit at Phra Nakorn Sri Ayudhaya province. In 2004 the Administrative Court ruled in favor of the subsidiary by 

discharging the lawsuit and extending the Health Hazardous Work Permits. 

The ruling is being appealed and is currently being considered by the Supreme Administrative Court. The management of the subsidiary and its 

attorney believe that the likelihood of winning is high.

Subsequently, the subsidiary has transferred such business and property to another subsidiary of the Company, which has been allowed to 

continue operating.

24   Promotional privileges

Promotional privileges from the Board of Investment 

In 2004, a subsidiary was granted promotional privileges from the Board of Investment for the production of alcohol and agricultural fuel.  The 

privileges granted include the exemption from the payment of import duty on approved machinery and exemption from the payment of   

corporate income tax for eight years from the date revenues are first generated.  In the event the subsidiary incurs a loss during this eight year 

period, the subsidiary can carry these losses forward to deduct against any future profits for a period of five years.  The Company also obtains 

a privilege related to the exemption from corporate income tax on dividends derived from the promoted business of its subsidiary during this 

eight year period. However, the subsidiary has to comply with terms and conditions outlined in the investment promotional certificate.
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Privileges granted to business operator in Free Zone

Also in 2004 another subsidiary was granted approval from the Customs Department to operate in a “Free Zone”, whereby the subsidiary obtains 

privileges related to the payment of import and export taxes, valued added tax and excise tax.  Various other privileges are also granted.

25   Segmental information

The business operations of the Group, as reflected in the consolidated financial statements, are classified into four major segments as follows:

Beer/water  Production and sales of branded beer and water products (mostly outside the group);

Spirits  Production and sales of branded spirits products (mostly outside the group);

Alcohol  Production and sales of alcohol (mostly outside the group); and

Related  Purchasing of packaging materials and sale of byproducts (mostly within the group).

Inter-segment transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable 

basis.

In preparing segmental information, those liabilities and related interest expense that are not specifically attributable to a particular segment 

are allocated on a percentage of net assets basis.  Management believe this to be a fair indication of the actual use of the liabilities.
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Revenue from sales 42,263.9 49,910.0 869.2 6,633.0 (7,584.9) 92,091.2 47,749.2 42,188.6 697.7 7,289.6 (7,798.8) 90,126.3

Interest income 9.2 41.9 0.4 12.2 (1.5) 62.2 10.8 6.3 0.3 4.1 (6.6) 14.9

Other income 141.0 103.7 12.4 20.7 (53.1) 224.7 306.7 171.8 6.5 31.7 (38.3) 478.4

Total Revenues 42,414.1 50,055.6 882.0 6,665.9 (7,639.5) 92,378.1 48,066.7 42,366.7 704.5 7,325.4 (7,843.7) 90,619.6

Cost of sales 32,543.7 29,920.4 471.3 6,068.3 (5,860.2) 63,143.5 36,846.7 26,089.9 468.9 6,670.6 (6,473.0) 63,603.1

Selling and administrative

     expenses 6,953.7 6,656.3 166.0 515.3 (1,774.3) 12,517.0 4,580.0 7,030.9 65.6 790.2 (1,351.2) 11,115.5

Profit before interest            

     expense and income tax 2,916.7 13,478.9 244.7 82.3 (5.0) 16,717.6 6,640.0 9,245.9 170.0 (135.4) (19.5) 15,901.0

Interest expense 349.8 1,143.8 42.3 60.9 (1.5) 1,595.3 284.5 1,401.0 26.0 35.4 (6.6) 1,740.3

Income tax 1,332.0 3,249.3 51.7 79.9 - 4,712.9 1,704.2 2,608.8 69.2 109.9 - 4,492.1

Net profit before the portion          

     not attributable to

     the Company 1,234.9 9,085.8 150.7 (58.5) (3.5) 10,409.4 4,651.3 5,236.1 74.8 (280.7) (12.9) 9,668.6

Net loss not attributable               

     to the Company - - - - - - - (748.9) - - - (748.9)

Net profit 1,234.9 9,085.8 150.7 (58.5) (3.5) 10,409.4 4,651.3 5,985.0 74.8 (280.7) (12.9) 10,417.5
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As at 31 December assets and liabilities of the Group (after inter-segment elimination) classified by business segments were as follows:

Inventories, net 2,812.4 22,817.5 119.0 285.8 26,034.7 3,771.4 26,296.1 316.9 353.5 30,737.9

Property, plant & equipment, net 20,480.9 23,732.9 1,736.7 2,344.5 48,295.0 16,671.0 25,434.8 1,601.3 2,243.1 45,950.2

Other assets 846.1 4,840.5 144.8 1,050.3 6,881.7 3,630.2 8,277.7 65.9 459.5 12,433.3

Total Assets 24,139.4 51,390.9 2,000.5 3,680.6 81,211.4 24,072.6 60,008.6 1,984.1 3,056.1 89,121.4

Total debt 10,416.7 27,377.2 1,035.0 1,557.8 40,386.7 10,630.4 34,426.1 990.7 1,079.6 47,126.8

Other liabilities 4,792.0 3,801.4 78.1 787.1 9,458.6 4,383.6 3,085.1 126.6 1,036.8 8,632.1

Total Liabilities 15,208.7 31,178.6 1,113.1 2,344.9 49,845.3 15,014.0 37,511.2 1,117.3 2,116.4 55,758.9

Gross capital expenditure

- Fixed assets 6,388.8 399.7 254.3 177.4 7,220.2 1,550.7 1,019.2 445.4 55.6 3,070.9

- Intangible assets 4.6 5.4 0.2 63.3 73.5 1.7 2.0 - 29.9 33.6

Depreciation 1,901.4 2,114.3 120.5 85.8 4,222.0 1,929.3 2,120.9 120.3 76.4 4,246.9

Amortisation 16.4 25.1 - 18.7 60.2 17.5 24.2 - 5.7 47.4

26  Subsequent events

Significant subsequent events were as follows:

(a)   The Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders of the Company No. 1/2006 held on 16 January 2006 unanimously approved the following 

       resolutions:

       -   To seek a listing on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) and/or other foreign stock exchanges as appropriate.

       -   The amendment of the Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders of the Company No. 1/2005 held on 8 July 2005 relating to the share 

            capital as follows:

       -   The allocation of not exceeding 6,000 million shares with a Baht 1 par value to the local and/or foreign public.
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       -   To seek a future listing on the Stock Exchange of Thailand and/or other foreign stock exchanges

       -   The issuance of all types of bonds with total credit line not exceeding Baht 20,000 million and a credit period not exceeding 7 years from 

            the date of the issue.

(b)   On 22 February 2006 the Company issued guaranteed bonds totaling Baht 10,000 million with a full co-guarantee by four subsidiaries and 

a further agreement made by 17 subsidiaries not to pledge their existing land, buildings, plant and machinery (“Negative pledge”).  The Board of 

Directors’ Meeting No. 1/2006 held on 1 February 2006 unanimously approved the negative pledge of the subsidiary companies.

(c)   The Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 3/2006 held on 24 February 2006 unanimously resolved the following resolutions:

       -   Consent for a dividend payment of Baht 0.24 per share, totaling Baht 5,280 million. 

       -   Approval for the reorganisation of the management structure to comply with the regulations of the Singapore Exchange Securities

          Trading Limited. 

       -   Recognition of details of guaranteed bonds issued as discussed above.

       -   Approval for long-term borrowings totaling Baht 26,600 million to be obtained from eight commercial banks to repay short-term loans.  

           The borrowings will be fully co-guaranteed by its four subsidiaries with a negative pledge made by 17 subsidiaries whereby these 

           subsidiaries agree not to sell, transfer, mortgage, pledge, encumber or grant any preferential right in relation to their land, buildings,

           plant and machinery.

       -   Recognition of the permission granted by the Office of the Securities Exchange Commission for the overseas initial pubic offering.

27  Reclassification of accounts

Certain accounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2004 have been reclassified to conform with the presentation in 

the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005.
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General Information

 Company Address Post Code Tel. Fax

Alcohol    
1 Thai Alcohol Plc. 31-35 Chalemkhet , Wat Thepsirin, Pomprab, Bangkok 10100  0-2223 3116  0-22225 4205

Brewery    
1 Beer Thai (1991) Plc. 5 Moo 14, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-272-2441
   Factory: 349 Moo 2 Tambol Maerad Amphur Krongkrung, Kamphaeng Phet 62120 055-728 400-15 055-728 371
2 BeerThip Brewery (1991) Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900  0-2617 9500   0-2617 9546
   Factory : 68 Moo 2 Tambol Namtoa Amphur Bangban,Ayutthaya 13250 035-259 333-47 035-289 371
3 Cosmos Brewery (Thailand) Co.,Ltd. 15 Moo 14, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900  0-2617 9500-29 0-2617 9549

Spirits    
1 Sangsom Co.,Ltd. 14, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900 0 -2278 4321 0-2278 3436
   Factory1: 49 Moo 4 Tambol Hormkret Amphur Sarmparn,Nakorn Phathom 73111 034-321 777-9 034-321 777
   Factory2: 37/3 Moo 7 Tambol Wangkhanan Amphur Thamung,Khachanauri 71110 034-611 053 034-611 778
2 Fuengfuanant Co., Ltd. 333 Moo 1, Tambol Thathom, Amphur Simahapho, Prachinburi 25140 037-285 016-20 037-285 237
3 Mongkolsamai Co., Ltd. 14, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
   Factory: 149 Moo 5 Amphur Wangsesoob Ngil-Ngam Rd. Tambol Pharjuk

   Amphur Muang, Uttaradit 53000 055-449 126-30 055-449 131
4 Thanapakdi Co., Ltd. 315 Moo 4, Tambol Maepaek, Amphur Sansai, Chiangmai 50290 053-849 550-3 053-849 555
5 Kanchanasingkorn Co., Ltd. 14, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
   Factory: 50 Moo 7 Tambol WangKhanarn Amphur Thamung, Kanchanaburi 71110 034-611 783-5 034-611 786
6 Sura Bangyikhan Co., Ltd. 515-323-5 Moo 2, Tambol Prachathiphat, Amphur Thunyaburi, Phatumthani   12130 0-2589 2911-2 0-2958 4380
   Factory: 82 Moo 3, Tambol Bangkuwat , Amphur Muang, Phatumthani 12000 0-2598 2850-9 0-2598 2858
7 Athimart Co., Ltd. 170 Moo 11, Tambol Nikhom, Amphur Satuk, Burirum  31150 044-627 200-3 044-627 202
8 S.S. Karnsura Co., Ltd. 101 Moo 8, Tambol Kangdom, King Amphur Sawangwirawong,

   Ubonratchathani 34190 045-202 210-1 045-202 212
      045-442 006-8
9 Kankwan Co., Ltd. 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
   Factory: 309 Moo 6 Nampong Krabuan Rd. Tambol Nampong

   Amphur Nampong, Khon Kaen 40310 043-441 013-5 043-441 017
10 Theparunothai Co., Ltd. 99 Moo 4,Tambol Hadcom, Amphur Muang, Nongkhai  43000 042-462 657  042-420 211
      042-420 208
11 Red Bull Distillery (1988) Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
   Factory: 8 Moo 5 Setthakit 1 Rd. Tambol Nakhonchaisri

   Amphur Nakhonchaisri, Nakhon Patthom 74000 034-830 216-6 034-831 000
12 United Winery & Distillery Co., Ltd. 14 , Sangsom Building, Soi Yasoob1, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd.,

   Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
   Factory: 54 Moo 2 Sukhaphiban Rd. Tambol Nakhonchaisri

   Amphur Nakhonchaisri,Nakhon pathom 73120 034-227 754-7 034-331 955
     034-331 954
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 Company Address Post Code Tel. Fax
    
13 Simathurakij Co., Ltd. 1  Moo 6, Tambol Bandan, Amphur Banphot Phisai, Nakhonsawan  60180 056-279 088-9 056-279 091
14 Nateechai Co., Ltd. 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
   Factory: 1 Moo 2 Highway # 41 Rd. Tambol Tharong Chang

   Amphur Punpin,Surat Thani 84130 077-357 170-3 077-357 174
15 Luckchai Liquor Trading Co., Ltd. 46 Moo 1, Tambol Nongklangna, Amphur Muang, Ratchaburi   70000 032-321 791-2 032-321 793
     032-313 6112
Marketing (Beer)    
1 Pomthip Co., Ltd. 2194 Charoen Krung Rd., Watphayakai, Bangkholeam, Bangkok 10120 0-2291 9711  0-2289 4751
2 Pomkit Co., Ltd. 48, 50, 52 Suranari Rd., Tambol Naimuang, Amphur Muang,

   Nakorn Ratchasima 30000 044-242 496  044-241 714
3 Pomchok Co., Ltd. D16/1 Uthong Rd., Tambol Thawasukri, Amphur Pha Nakhon Si Ayutthaya,

   Pha Nakhon Si Ayutthaya   13000 035-241 678  035-241 032
4 Pomcharoen Co., Ltd. 135/3 Moo 4, Kanchanavithi, Tambol Bangkung, Amphur Muang, Surat Thani 84000 077-224 774  077-224 775
5 Pomkang Co., Ltd. 80/13 - 14 Eakatodsarot Rd., Tambol Naimuang, Amphur Muang, Phitsanulok  65000  055-219 110  055-219 024
6 Pomburapa Co., Ltd. 51/42  Moo 3, Sukhumvit Rd., Bansoun, Amphur Muang, Chonburi   20000  038-287 268   038-272 525

Marketing (Spirits)    
1 Numyuk Co., Ltd. 95/390-391 Nokkhet,Rama 3 Rd.,  Chongnontri, Yanawa, Bangkok 10120  0-2291 9711-5 0-2289 4751
2 Numthurakij Co., Ltd. 51/40-41 Moo 3, Sukhumvit Rd., Tambol Bansoun, Amphur Muang, Chonburi 20000 038-287 268-9 035-272 525
3 Nummuang Co., Ltd. D 16/2 Uthong Rd., Tambol Thawasukri, Amphur Pha Nakhon Si Ayutthaya,

   Pha Nakhon Si Ayutthaya    13000 035-242 691 035-242 691
4 Numnakorn Co., Ltd. 149/3 Jullajomklao Rd., Tambol Thakham, Amphur Phuphin, Suratthani  84130 077-224 771-4 077-224 775
5 Numpalang Co., Ltd. 1/7-8 Phraya Surasi Rd., Tambol Naimuang, Amphur Muang, Phitsanulok  65000  055-241 132 055-219 024
6 Num Kijjakarn Co., Ltd. 167/1 Jakkri Rd., Tambol Naimuang, Amphur Muang, Nakorn Ratchasima  30000  044-242 496 044-241 747

Sole Agent    
1 Thipchalothron Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
2 Krittayabun Co., Ltd. 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
     0-2272 2295
3 Surathip Co., Ltd. 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
     0-2272 2295
4 Sunthronpirom Co., Ltd. 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
     0-2272 2295
5 Piromsurang Co., Ltd. 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
     0-2272 2295
Export, Import & Logistics    
1 Thai Beverage Marketing Co., Ltd. 40/53 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Talad Bangkhen, Laksi, Bangkok 10210 0-2973 4100-5 0-2973 4109
      0-2521 8040-1
2 Sahatipkarnkonsong Co., Ltd. 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2316
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Related Business    
1 Dhosapak Co., Ltd. 195 Empire Tower, 25th Floor, South Sathorn, Yanawa, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120 0-2670 2525 0-2670 2535
2 Pan International (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
3 Bionic Humas Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
4 Maharajkarnkaset Co., Ltd. 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2316
5 Thai Molasses Co., Ltd. 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2316
6 Additive Food Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
7 Charun Business 52 Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
8 Thai Cooperage Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
9 Dhanasindhi Co., Ltd. 949/6-8 Nakhonchaisri Rd., Tanon Nakhonchaisri, Dusit, Bangkok  10300 0-2241 0127 0-2243 1607
10 Bang-na Logistics Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530

Overseas    
1 International Beverage Holdings Ltd. Room 901,Silvercord Tower1, 30 Canton Rd., Tsim Sha Tsui,

   Kowloon, Hong Kong - (852) 2375 6648 (852) 2375 6188
2 Interbev (Singapore) Limited. 3 Philip Street # 13-14 Commerce Point, Singapore 048693 (65) 6435 2161 

Others   
1 Vidhayathan Co.,Ltd. 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
2 Muengkit Co., Ltd. 9 Daown kanong-Jomthong Road, Bangkor, Jomtong, Bangkok  19500 0-2272 2051 0-2272 2584
3 T.C.C. Cosmo Corporation Limited 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
4 Pan Alcohol Co., Ltd. 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2330
5 Banglen Agriculture Co.,Ltd. 31-35 Chalemkhet , Wat Thepsirin, Pomprab, Bangkok 10100 0-2223 3125  0-2225 4205
6 Archa Beer Co., Lid 4236/56 Nokkhet,Rama 3 Rd.,  Chongnontri, Yanawa, Bangkok  10120  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
7 Beer Chang Co.,Ltd 15 Moo 14 Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd., Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900  0-2617 9500-29  0-2617 9530
8 Sintekpanich Co.,Ltd. 31-35 Chalemkhet , Pomprab, Bangkok  10100 0-2223 3125 0-2225 4205
9 Suraphiset Thipharat Co.,Ltd. 14 , Sangsom Building, Soi Yasoob1, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd.,

   Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
10 Suraphiset Sahasan Co.,Ltd. 14 , Sangsom Building, Soi Yasoob1, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd.,

   Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
11 Suraphiset Samphan Co.,Ltd. 14 , Sangsom Building, Soi Yasoob1, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd.,

   Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok  10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321
12 Suraphiset Pattharalanna Co.,Ltd. 14 , Sangsom Building, Soi Yasoob1, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd.,

   Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2584
13 Thai Thum Distillery Co.,Ltd. 14 , Sangsom Building, Soi Yasoob1, Vibhavadee Rangsit Rd.,

   Chomphol, Chatujak, Bangkok 10900 0-2272 2051-5 0-2272 2321

General Information
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Registration No. 40854600035  
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